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EQUITY INNS, INC. Financial and Hotel Operating Highlights

Egquity Inns Hotel Manager’s Diversity

Years Ended December 31,
INTERSTATE HOTELS

2003 2002

HILTON HOTELS

$230.1 mnhon 3229 4 million PRIIE HOSPITALITY

WATERFORD

.5 million . HOTEL GROUP

Net income (loss) per share, basic and diuted  (0.56) | 0.00 WRIGHT PROPERTIES
Adjusted funds from operations per share and Unit (2) 0.75 0.85

.............................................................................................................................. {SLAND HOSPITALITY

Dividends per common share . 0.52 b 0.51 .

investment in hotels, net (3) 691.7 million 740 1 million

(1) Industry anaiysts generally consider funds from operations (FFO) to be an appropriate measure of the

performance of an equity REIT, FFO 1s defined as income before minority interest pius certain non-cash o

items, such as depreciation and gain (loss) on sale of assets, plus certain nonrecurring xtemsJ The Company H@ﬁj@ﬂ @p@ﬂ‘a{tﬂmg Da{ta

has further adjusted FFO (AFFO) for losses on impairment of hotels held for sale, original I Lssuance costs

of preferred stock and all amounts related to deferred income taxes. The Company uses AFFO because Years Ended December 31,
it believes that this measure provides investors a more usefu! indicator of the Company's ‘performance 2003 * 2002* Change

(2} Adjusted funds from operations per share is computed as adjusted funds from ope}rat'\ons divided

by the weighted number of outstanding shares of common stock and units of the Partner‘ship‘ Revenue per Available Room $50.72 $51.53 (1.6)%
{3) Includes assets held for sale.
e dRBYPAR) e
| 0CCUPANSY. oo 66.8% ...664% . 05%
' Average Daily Rate $75.99 $77.59 (2.1%

*Comparable basis for 92 hotels open both full years

RevPAR Changes for 2001 through 2003
INDUSTRY VS. EQUITY INNS
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Equity inns RevPAR has outperformed the lodging industry two out of the last three years
rom——| -
T INDUSTRY ENN Additionally, the Company’s change in RevPAR has been more consistent and less volatile.

EQUITY NNS, INC. (NYSEENN) fs & Memphisbased, sali-acvised estete Invesiment Trust (REIT) and s the lergest REIT focused on the upscale
extended stay, alksulte and midscale limftted-service segments of the hotel industry. At year-end 2003, the Company owned & geographically dverse
pertiolio of ©3 hetels with epproximatsly 12,000 rooms, located n 34 states. The company’s hotels are franchised primar ﬂy by Mearriott, Hilton
and Prime Hospially a@@l include the f U@adin( [bxmdgn d Suftes and [hﬂ@mm n lans by Hiton, Residence inns, and Courlyard by Merrioft
and AmeriSultes by P Hl@)@ e =




Elequityinns

LETTER TO SHAREHOLD

ERS

2003 was another year of industry challenges, but also a year of achievements for Equity Inns.
We are pleased to report the following accomplishments:

* We gained share in many of our markets and realized our goal of improving overall occupancy.

* We significantly strengthened our balance sheet, which enabled us to upgrade our hotel portfolio.

* We outperformed our peers with a total return to our shareholders of 59%, which brought our three-year
annual total return to over 23%. In the same three-year period the S&P 500 decreased over 4%.

* We continued to provide steady results and, therefore, stable dividends.

Amid a challenging macro environment, Equity Inns remained focused on its core mission of maximizing hotel performance
and shareholder value through a “diversity-based” execution strategy, which resulted in lower volatility to our operations
and more predictable trends. With a seasoned management team and increased financial strength, we believe we are well
positioned to capitalize on the opportunities that lay ahead amid an improving economy in 2004 and beyond. Our strength
through diversification includes the following;

* Geographic - our 93 hotels operate in 34 states

* Segment - our hotels are focused on the mid-price and upscale portions of the industry

e Brand - our properties are franchised by well-known and well-positioned industry-leaders, such as Hilton and Marriott,
who provide strong marketing support and effective programs such as frequency stay and price match guarantee that drive
incremental revenue through our properties.

* Management - we utilize six different management companies to operate the properties.

Despite the slowdown in the travel industry, we focused on strategically increasing occupancy share in our individual hotel
markets while maintaining our RevPAR premiums. We believed that by concentrating on occupancy, we could minimize
our downside during challenging economic times while positioning our hotels to grow ADR as the economy recovers.
The results bear this out. According to Smith Travel Research, Equity Inns' occupancy share grew 1.3% to 108.5% in 2003,
while maintaining a RevPAR premium of 15.3% as compared to its market competitors. Equity Inns’ stable performance
over time has produced RevPAR which has outperformed the industry ewo out of the last three years.

In 2003, our improved capital structure allowed us to seize market opportunities and improve the quality and average age
of our hotel portfolio by simultaneously acquiring and divesting hotels where it made strategic sense. We finalized an agreement
to acquire four hotels in Florida, including two Marriott Courtyards in Tallahassee and Gainesville, as well as two Residence
Inns by Marriote in Tampa and Tallahassee. These acquisitions provided entry into new and growing markets and should
generate increased shareholder value. At the same time, we rebalanced our portfolio by divesting four older properties
that no longer met our long-term goals: a Holiday Inn Express in Wilkesboro, North Carolina, an AmeriSuites hotel

in Jacksonville, Florida, a Hampton Inn in Fort Worth, Texas, and a Hampron Inn & Suites in Bartlett, Tennessee.

Opver the past several months, we have finalized agreements to buy an additional five hotels. These purchases are part
of our long-term strategy, of shifting our portfolio mix toward upscale properties, increasing our presence in growing
markets and improving our portfolio age profile. Furthermore, our portfolio evaluation continues as we will also divest
properties that have limited potential to create shareholder value.

Since the beginning of 2003, due to our asset and stock sales, we have increased our acquisition capacity by 33%.
At year-end, the Company’s availability under its line of credit was over $50 million. As always, we will be opportunistic
with respect to raising capital in order to maintain flexibility in making and closing acquisitions.
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For the year ended December 31, 2003, Equity Inns reported a loss from continuing operations of $10.3 million, including

a non-cash income tax valuation allowance of $16.8 million. Excluding the effect of the valuation allowance, the Company
reported income from continuing operations of $6.1 million in 2003, compared to income from continuing operations
of $5.8 million in 2002. For the year ended December 31, 2003, Equity Inns reported Adjusted Funds from Operations
(AFFO) excluding the impact of both a valuamonh reserve and a deferred income tax benefit, of $31.5 million, or $0.75

per share, compared to $34.6 million, or $0.85 p‘ér share, in the same period last year.

Our financial performance was achieved by adhcrmg to what we consider to be a sound business plan in any operating
environment. We minimize the impact any particu. Ular region or property can have on the overall portfolio and partner with
a select group of proven operators to ensure our assets are managed to first-rate standards. We are always mindful to pur
our capital to the best possible use and make appropnate changes to ensure we maximize the value of our properties.

Our cash available for distribution (CAD) payput ratio for 2003 was 87%, which enabled the Company to pay

a consistent dividend throughout year. Equity Inns' stable performance over the past three years permitted the Company
to maintain its consistent record of paying a qua"rterly dividend the last two years, while some of our peers have not paid
a dividend since 2001. The fact that we have cons1stently maintained our dividend policy is a testament to our management

team and the success of our long-term strategy. On December 31, 2003 Equity Inns had a dividend yield of 5.7%.

In 2003, we continued to make strides in 1mprovmg our balance sheet. Our debt to EBITDA ratio on December 31, 2003
was 4.76 times; our fixed charge coverage ratio was 1.5 times; and our interest coverage was 2.15 times, all within our
required bank covenants. We also maintained a bmrrowlng capacity of over $50 million on our $110 million line of credit.
Furthermore, the Company's total debt-to- hotel‘cosr level is now 35.3%, the lowest in six years. We believe that these
are all good measures of an improving balance shqet

Importantly, we have no significant debt maturing until 2007, which better allows us to pursue our strategy of growth and
diversification. We also realized approximately $30 million in net proceeds through the sale of common stock and preferred
stock. In the case of the latter, we shed 75 basis pomts by replacing our 9.5% Series A preferred stock with 8.75% Series B
preferred stock. {

In January 2004, Don Dempsey announced his [retirement after serving 35 years in the hotel industry. Don has been
an invaluable part of the Equity Inns’ management team for five years and steered us well as Chief Financial Officer.
We would like to thank Don for his significant contributions to Equity Inns. We would also like to welcome Mitch Collins,
who joined us in January to replace Don. Mitch brings to our team an extensive knowledge of mergers and acquisitions

and relevant public financial experience. 5
Looking ahead, we are seeing signs of improved iec:onomic optimism and believe our industry is well-poised to benefit
from this revival in the year ahead. Hotel-room su}?ply stands at the lowest level in ten years. To that point, as demand starts
to slowly improve, it will be in a supply constrained environment, which should translate into positive results for Equity

|

Inns and the industry. At the same time, we behe‘{/e Equity Inns is uniquely positioned to capture future industry growth

by setting attainable goals and executing accordmgly We will remain conservative in our balance sheet and reinvest in our
assets to enhance value and improve productivity. |

We hope the new year will bring more stability for bur country, greater safety for our military forces, and, of course, renewed
strength for the lodging industry. We greatly apprec1ate the support of our employees and shareholders as we continue
to build upon what we have already achieved. i;

!

Sincerely, ,

| o (] Jode—

Howard A. Silver

Phillip H. McNeill, ‘
Chairman and Ch|ef Executlve Officer | President and COO
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PARTI

Throughout this Form 10-K, the words "Company", "Equity Inns", "we", "our", and "us" refer to Equity
Inns, Inc., a Tennessee corporation, and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise stated or
the context requires otherwise.

CAUTIONARY FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

This report contains or incorporates by reference forward-looking statements within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, including, without limitation, statements containing the words, "believes",
"estimates”, "intends", "will", "anticipates”, "expects" and words of similar import. Such forward-
looking statements relate to future events, the future financial performance of the Company, and
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual
results, performance or achievements of the Company or industry results to be materially different
from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements. Readers should specifically consider the various factors identified, or incorporated by
reference in this report including, but not limited to those discussed in the sections entitled "Growth
Strategy" and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of
Operations," certain risk factors as discussed in our Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 11,
2004, and in any other documents filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange
Commission that could cause actual resuits to differ. We disclaim any obligation to update any such
factors or to publicly announce the result of any revisions to any of the forward-looking statements
contained herein to reflect future events or developments.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
(a) General Development of Business

Equity Inns is in the business of acquiring and disposing of equity interests in hotels, primarily mid-
scale to upscale properties. The Company completed an initial public offering in March 1994 and
is a real estate investment trust ("REIT") for federal income tax purposes. The Company, through
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Equity Inns Trust (the "Trust"), is the sole general partner of Equity Inns
Partnership, L.P. (the "Partnership") and, at December 31, 2003, owned an approximate 97.4%
interest in the Partnership. We conduct our business through the Partnership and our other
subsidiaries.

(b) Narrative Description of Business

At December 31, 2003, we owned 93 hotel properties with a total of 11,997 rooms in 34 states. In
order to qualify as a REIT, we cannot operate hotels. Therefore, our hotels were leased to taxable
REIT subsidiaries of the Company (the "TRS Lessees") and are managed by unrelated third parties.

On January 1, 2001, the REIT Modernization Act ("RMA") went into effect. Among other things, the
RMA permits a REIT to form taxable REIT subsidiaries ("TRSs") that lease hotels from the REIT,
provided that the hotels are managed by independent management companies. Effective January
1, 2001, we completed transactions that resulted in our TRSs acquiring leases for the 77 hotels that
were previously leased by subsidiaries of Interstate Hotels Corporation. Effective January 1, 2002,
we completed transactions that resulted in acquiring leases for the remaining 19 hotels that were
previously leased by subsidiaries of Prime Hospitality Corporation. By acquiring these leases
through our TRSs, we realized the economic benefits and risks of the operations of these hotels and
began reporting hotel revenues and expenses rather than percentage lease revenues.




|
We maintain management agreements with unrelated third parties for cur hotels that range in terms
from 1 to 10 years. The management fee$ consist of a base fee ranging from 1.5% tc 2.5% of hotel
revenues and an incentive fee consisting of a percentage cf gross cperating profits in excess of
budget, as defined by the management agreements. These fees are recorded by us as a
compenent of direct hotel expenses in our consolidated statements of operations.

1

At December 31, 2003, our independent fhoteﬂ managers are as follows:

! % of
"‘ Hotels
Interstate Hotels Corporation ; 51
Promus Hotels, Inc. (a Hilton Hoteis
Corporation subsidiary) i 18
Prime Hospitality Corporation | 18
Other 6
Total 3

]

The diversity of cur pertfolic is such that, ét December 31, 2003, no individual hotel exceeded 2.1%
of the total rooms in the portfolio. Our geographical distribution and franchise diversity is iliustrated
by the following charts. |

Franchise Diversity

‘ # of Hotel # of Rooms/
Franchise Affiliation ? Properties Suites
Premium Limited Service Hotels:
Hampton Inn ? 47 5,805
Comfort Inn 2 245
Sub-total 49 8.150
All-Suite Hotels:
AmeriSuites 18 2.291
Premium Extended Stay Hotels: |
Residence Inn ! 11 1,351
Homewood Suites | _9 1,295
Sub-total i 20 2.648
Full Service Hotels: i
Holiday Inn ' 4 557
Comfort Inn 1 177
Marriott Courtyard , 1 176
Sub-total | 6 210
Totai 23 11,897




Geogaraphical Diversity
Number of Number of Percentage of

State Hotels Suites/Rooms Suites/Rooms
Alabama 3 382 3.2%
Arizona 4 495 4.1%
Arkansas 1 123 1.0%
Colorado 3 356 3.0%
Connecticut 3 405 3.4%
Florida 7 967 8.1%
Georgia 3 314 2.6%
Idaho 1 104 0.9%
lllinois 3 499 4.2%
Indiana 2 255 2.1%
Kansas 2 260 2.2%
Kentucky 1 119 1.0%
Louisiana 1 128 1.1%
Maryland 2 244 2.0%
Michigan 3 399 3.3%
Minnesota 2 248 2.1%
Missouri 2 242 2.0%
Nebraska 1 80 0.7%
Nevada 1 202 1.7%
New Jersey 3 424 3.5%
New Mexico 1 128 1.0%
New York 1 154 1.3%
North Carolina 4 513 4.3%
Ohio 6 736 6.1%
Oklahoma 1 135 1.1%
Oregon i 168 1.4%
Pennsylvania 2 249 2.1%
South Carolina 3 404 3.4%
Tennessee S 1,047 8.7%
Texas 8 1,156 9.6%
Vermont 2 200 1.7%
Virginia 2 245 2.0%
Washington 1 161 1.3%
West Virginia _4 ___455 _38%

Totals 93 11.897 100.0%
GROWTH STRATEGY
The Company's business objectives are to increase funds from operations and dividends, while
enhancing shareholder value primarily through (i) aggressive asset management and the strategic
investment of capital in its diversified hotel portfolio, primarily with mid-scale and upscaie properties
in urban and suburban areas, (ii) selectively acquiring hotels that have been underperforming due
to the lack of sufficient capital improvements, poor management or franchise affiliation, and (iii)
selectively disposing of hotels that have reached their earnings potential or may, in management's
judgment, suffer adverse changes in their local market, or require large capital outlays.




EMPLOYEES |
At March 1, 2004, we employed, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, 18 employees.
]

COMPETITICN !
k
The hotel industry is highly competitive v;\‘/ith various participants competing on the basis of price,
level of service and geographic iocatuon‘ Each cof our hotels is located in a developed area that
includes other hotel properties. The number of competitive hotel properties in a particular area
could have a materiai adverse effect on fhe occupancy, average daily rate ("ADR") and Revenue
Per Available Room ("RevPAR") of our thotels or at hotel properties acquired in the future. We
believe that brand recognition, location, the quality of the hotel, consistency of services provided,
and price are the principal competitive factors affecting our hotels.

!
FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS \
A part of our asset management progrvam is the licensing of all of ocur hoteis under nationally
franchised brands. We believe that the public's perception of quaiity associated with a franchiser
is an important feature in the opera‘tionﬁ of a hotel. We aiso believe that franchised properties
generally have higher levels of occupancy and ADR than unfranchised properties due to access to
national reservation systems and advef‘tisj,’ing and marketing programs provided by franchisors. Our
franchise agreements generally have terms ranging from 10 to 25 years and expire beginning in
2004 through 2028. Renewal proceduréps are currently underway for several of our hotels.

|
We are also committed to franchisors to v“’nake certain capital improvements to our hotel properties,
which will be funded primarily through our operating cash flows. We made capital improvements
of approximately $13.3 million to our hotels in 2003. In 2004, we expect to fund approximately $17
million of capital improvements to our ho‘tels
i
SEASCNALITY |

Cur operations historically have been sgasonal in nature, generally reflecting higher occupancy
rates and RevPAR during the second and third quarters. This seasonality can be expected to cause

fluctuations in our quarterly operating resul‘ts

]n
i

TAX STATUS [’

We intend to operate so as {o be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856-860 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended. Asiong as we qualify for taxation as a REIT, with certain exceptions,
we will not be taxed at the corporate level cn our taxable income that is distributed to our
shareholders. A REIT is subject to a number of organizational and operational requirements,
including a requirement that it must dlstr|pute annually at least 20% of its taxabie income in the form
of a dividend to its shareholders. Faufure to qualify as a REIT will render us subject to tax (including
any applicable alternative minimum ‘taﬁ,() on our taxable income at reguiar corporate rates and
distributions to the shareholders in any such year will not be deductibie by us. Even if we qualify for
taxation as a REIT, we may be subject tc]? certain state and local taxes on our income and property.
In connection with our election to be taxeoi as a REIT, our Company charler imposes certain
restrictions on the transfer of shares of our common stock and preferred stock. We have adopted

the calendar year as our taxable year. !;




The RMA, which generally tcok effect on January 1, 2001, includes several REIT provisions which
revised extensively the tax rules applicable to TRSs. Under the RMA provisions, we are now
allowed to own all of the stock in TRSs. In addition, a TRS is aliowed tc perform "non-customary”
services for hotel guests and is permitted to enter into many new businesses. However, TRSs are
not allowed to manage hotels. Each TRS is required to enter into management contracts for our
hotels with independent management companies. The use of TRSs, however, is subject to certain
restrictions, including the following: '

+ no more than 20% of the REIT's assets may consist of securities of its TRSs;

* the tax deductibility of interest paid or accrued by a2 TRS to its affiliated REIT is limited: and

> a 100% excise tax is imposed on non-arm's length transactions between a TRS and its
affiliated REIT or the RE[T's tenants.

As a result of the opportunities offered by the RMA, we have terminated or assigned the leases for
hotels previously leased to the subsidiaries of Interstate and Prime and entered into new leases with
the TRS Lessees for aii of our hotels.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

in connection with the acquisition of our hotels, Phase | environmental site assessments were
obtained on all of our hotels. These assessments included historical reviews of our hotels, reviews
of certain public records, preliminary investigations of the sites and surrounding properties,
screenings for hazardous and toxic substances and underground storage tanks, and the preparation
and issuance of a written report. These assessments did not include invasive procedures {o detect
contaminants from former operations of our hotels or migrating from neighbors or caused by third
parties. These assessments have noi revealed any environmentat liability that we believe would
have a material adverse effect on our business, assets, results of operations or liquidity, nor are we
aware of any such liability or material environmental issues.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS CF THE COMPANY

The Company's executive officers, listed below, serve in their respective capacities for approximate
one year terms and are subject to re-election annually by the Board of Directors, normally in May
of each year.

NAME POSITION

Phillio H. McNeill, Sr. Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer
and Director

Howard A. Silver President, Chief Operating Officer and Director

J. Mitchell Collins® Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,

Secretary, Treasurer

Donald H. Dempsey* Former Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer, Secretary, Treasurer

Phillip H. McNeill, Jr. Executive Vice President of Development

J. Ronald Cooper Vice President, Controller, Assistant Secretary,

and Assistant Treasurer




*Mr. Collins was elected by our Beard to be Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Secretary, and Treasurer on January 23, 2004 Mr. Dempsey resigned as Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer and director on January 23, 2004 in conjunction
with his planned retirement from our Company Mr. Dempsey will remain an employee of our
Company through May 2004.

Phillip H. McNeill, Sr. (age 85) has ser\(}ed as our Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief
Executive Officer since our Company was founded and has been Chairman and President of
McNeill Investment Company, Ingc. since 1977 From 1863 ¢ 1977, he served in various capacntles
including President and Chief Executw‘e Officer, with Schumacher Mortgage Company, Inc., a
mortgage banking firm and subsidiary pf Time, Inc. Mr. McNeill has served as President and
Director of the Memphis Mortgage Bankers Association and the Tennessee State Mortgage Bankers
Association. He has been a director of]Natnonal Commerce Financial Corporation since 1999, a
member of the Board of Trustees of Rpodes College, the Board of Visitors of the Umvevsaty of
Memphis, and a beard member of the Soc:lety of Entrepreneurs and Youth Villages, [nc. He has
been Chairman of the Board, Chief Executnve Officer and Director of cur Company since its
founding in 1993. Mr. McNeill is the father of Phillip H. McNeill, Jr., our Executive Vice President-
Development. !

|
Howard A. Silver (age 49) is our Presmﬂenit and Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Silver joined our
Company in May 1994 and has served m various capacities, including Executive Vice President of
Finance, Secretary, Treasurer and Ch|ef Financial Officer of cur Company until June 1288. From
1992 until joining our Company, Mr. levqr served as Chief Financial Officer of Aiabaster Originals,
L.P., Memphis, Tennessee, a fashion Jéwelry whoiesaler. From 1878 to 1985, Mr. Silver was a
certlf ed public accountant with the natzona! accounting firm of Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P., from 1885
to 1987, Mr. Silver served as Vice Presm!ent of Finance of Fogelman Properties, Inc., Memphis,
Tennessee, an apartment management company, and from 1987 to 1992, Mr. Silver was employed
as a certified public accountant with ?he\na‘tional accounting firm of Ernst & Young. He has been
a certified public accountant since 1980 Mr. Silver has been a director of our Company since
December 1998. Mr. Silver is also on ‘the Board of Managers of GHIl, LLC, a private furniture and
equipment contracter, and is a director Wf Ridgeway Country Club.
J. Mitchell Collins (age 35) is Executlve Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and
Treasurer of the Company, positions he has held since January 2004. From 2000 until 2003, he
served as Executive Vice President and Chlef Financial Officer of ResortQuest International, Inc
a New York Stock Exchange Companyl("NYSE") that performed rental property managemem m
resort areas. ResoriQuest was purchased by Gaylord Entertainment, Inc. in late 2003. From 1890
until 2000, Mr. Collins worked with Ar&huy Andersen LLP, where he represented the firm as part of
its National Hospitality practice and also was a Team Leader for Andersen's Real Estate and
Hospitality practice in its Mid-Scuth reglon Mr. Collins is also 2 member of the American Institute

of Certified Public Accountants.

h

Phillip H. McNeill, Jr. (age 42) is Executwe Vice President of Development of the Company, a
position he has held since 1886. From 1994 to 1996, he served as President of Trust Leasing, Inc.,
formerly McNeill Hotelf Co., Inc., the Cor,*,npanys former lessee, and from 1984 to 1996 served as
Vice President of Trust Management ﬂnc formerly McNeill Hospitality Corporation, which was an
affiliate of McNeill Hotel Company. Mr. McNelll is the son of Phillip H. McNeill, Sr., our Chairman

and Chief Executive Officer.




J. Ronald Cooper (age 55) is Vice President, Controller, Assistant Secretary and Assistant
Treasurer of the Company, positions he has held since 1986. From 1994 to 1896, he was
Controller and Director of Financial Reporting for McNeill Hotel Company and joined the that
Company in October 1994. Mr. Cooper has been a certified public accountant since 1872. From
1978 until joining McNeill Hotel Company, Mr. Cooper was employed as Secretary, Treasurer and
Controller of Wall Street Deli, inc., a publicly-owned delicatessen company. Prior to that, Mr.
Cooper was a certified public accountant with the national accounting firm of Coopers & Lybrand
L.L.P. from 1970 to 1978.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Our Internet website address is: www.equityinns.com. We also make available free of charge
through our website our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports
on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as soon as reasonably practicable afier such
documents are electronically filed with, or furnished to, the Securities and Exchange Commission
("SEC").

We will also make available our Corporate Governance Guidelines and the charters of our Audit,
Compensation and Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee on our website under
"Corporate Governance" by the time of our annual meeting of shareholders on May 13, 2004. We
have also adopted 2 Code of Ethics that applies to all of our employees and will post this Code of
Ethics, along with our Whistleblower policy, on our website by the time of our 2004 annual meeting.
We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirements under ltem 10 of Form 8-K relating to amendments
to or waivers from any provision of the Code of Ethics by posting such information on our website.
Our corporate governance documents are also available in print upon written shareholder request
to our Secretary, J. Mitchell Collins, at 7700 Wolf River Boulevard, Germantown, Tennessee 38138,
or by filling out an information request on our website under "information Requesis."

The information on our website is not, and shall not be deemed {0 be, a part of this report or
incorporated into any other filings that we make with the SEC.
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[TEM 2. PROPERTIES E
The following table sets forth certain information for the year ended December 31, 2003 with respect
{o our hotels:
Year Ended December 31, 2003
Revenue
| Number Average Per
Date ! Of Room Daily Available
Opened | _Rooms Revenue(1) Occupancy Rate Room (2)
Hampton Inn: |
Albany, New York 1986 | 154 $ 3,987 68.9% $102.94 $70.92
Ann Arbor, Michigan 1986 150 2,703 62.2% $79.87 $49.71
Atlanta (Northlake), Georgia 1988 | 130 1,600 53.4% $59.69 $31.86
Austin, Texas 1987 | 122 1,549 53.8% $65.17 $35.07
Baltimore (Glen Burnie), Maryland 1989 | 116 2,902 84.7% $81.64 $69.14
Beckley, West Virginia 1992 | 108 2,223 81.8% $68.90 $56.38
Birmingham (Mountain Brook), Alabama 1987 131 2,497 70.8% $74.27 $52.61
Birmingham (Vestavia), Alabama 1986 | 123 1,627 56.0% $65.18 $36.53
Chapel Hill, North Carolina 1986 | 122 1,961 67.3% $65.98 $44.39
Charleston, South Caroclina 1985 | 125 2,036 78.8% $56.65 $44.62
Chattanooga, Tennessee 1988 | 168 2,622 71.8% $59.91 $43.01
Chicago (Gurnee), lllinois 1988 ! 134 1,934 57.4% $68.84 $39.54
Chicago (Naperville), lllinois 1987 | 130 2,312 66.8% $74.10 $49.48
Cleveland, Ohio 1987 | 123 1,543 52.5% $65.51 $34.36
College Station, Texas 1986 | 135 2,013 63.2% $65.13 $41.15
Colorado Springs, Colorado 1985 | 128 1,476 51.7% $61.07 $31.59
Columbia, South Carolina 1985 121 1,694 61.2% $63.19 $38.67
Columbus, Georgia 1986 | 119 1,885 69.0% $63.46 $43.78
Columbus (Dublin), Ohio 1988 123 1,776 56.7% $69.75 $39.56
Dallas (Addison), Texas 1985 | 160 1,579 46.2% $58.90 $27.21
Dallas (Richardson), Texas 1987 : 130 1,513 56.7% $56.22 $31.88
Denver (Aurora), Colorado 1985 | 132 1,330 54.0% $51.51 $27.81
Detroit (Madison Heights), Michigan 1987 ¢ 124 2,354 61.6% $84.46 $52.01
Detroit (Norihfield), Michigan 1989 125 2,350 63.3% $81.32 $51.50
Fayetteville, North Carolina 1986 | 122 2129 79.4% $60.71 $48.20
Ft. Worth, Texas (3) (4) 1987 | 125 111 55.9% $76.22 $42.61
Gastonia, North Carolina 1989 | 109 1,344 60.5% $55.80 $33.79
Indianapolis, Indiana 1987 129 2,313 66.6% $73.73 $49.13
Jacksonville, Florida (3) 1986 122 2,048 74.0% $62.69 $46.37
Kansas City (Overland Park), Kansas 1991 ¢ 134 2,090 60.0% $71.24 $42.73
Kansas City, Missouri 1987 | 120 2,101 61.3% $78.25 $47.97
Knoxville, Tennessee 1991 118 1,897 74.8% $58.86 $44.04
Little Rock (North), Arkansas 1985 | 123 1,381 52.0% $59.09 $30.75
Louisville, Kentucky 1986 119 1,444 55.0% $60.99 $33.54
iMemphis (Poplar), Tennessee 1985 | 126 2,486 69.2% $78.77 $54 .49
Memphis (Sycamore View), Tennessee 1984 | 117 1,343 57.9% $54.80 $31.73
Meriden, Connecticut 1988 | 125 2,099 58.2% $79.66 $46.38
Milford, Connecticut 1986 | 148 2,432 58.5% $77.01 $45.03
Morgantown, West Virginia 1991 108 2,273 75.3% $77.27 $58.21
Nashville (Briley Parkway), Tennessee 1987 | 120 1,802 64.7% $64.16 $41.50
Norfolk, Virginia 1990 119 2,394 75.1% $73.98 $55.59
Pickwick, Tennessee 1994 | 50 654 53.2% $67.42 $35.85
San Antonio (Bowie), Texas 1995 | 169 3,521 67.6% $84.02 $56.77
1 Sarasota, Florida (3) 1987 |} 97 1,149 53.2% $60.96 $32.45
f Scottsdale, Arizona 1996 | 126 1,781 50.1% $77.26 $38.73
Scranton, Pennsylvania 1994 | 129 2,600 73.0% $75.68 $55.22
State College, Pennsylvania 1987 ! 120 1,971 54.5% $82.58 $45.01
St. Louis (Westport), Missouri 1987 | 122 1,856 58.1% $71.75 $41.69
Hampton Inn & Suites :
Bartlett, Tennessee (3) (4) 1998 ! 125 14 34.6% $64.98 $22.46
Marriott Courtyard i
Houston, Texas 2002 | 176 4,348 69.7% $97.11 $67.69
Comfort inn: '
Dallas (Arlington), Texas (3) 1985 | 141 1,175 47.7% $47.88 $22.83
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 1973 | 177 4,496 75.1% $92.70 $69.59
Rutland, Vermont 1985 104 1,721 62.7% $72.51 $45.47
: '
|
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Year Ended December 31, 2003
Revenue
Number Average Per
Date Of Room Daily Available
Opened Rooms Revenue(1) Occupancy Rate Room (2)
Residence Inn:
Boise, Idaho 1986 104 2,622 79.8% $86.42 $69.07
Burlington, Vermont 1988 96 2,355 78.8% $85.27 $67.21
Colorado Springs, Colorado 1984 96 2,054 74.8% $78.28 $58.52
Minneapolis (Eagan), Minnesota 1988 120 2,492 72.1% $79.17 $57.05
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 1982 135 2,849 76.5% $75.60 $57.81
Omaha, Nebraska 1981 80 1,964 80.2% $83.89 $67.27
Portland, Oregon 1990 168 3,798 69.8% $88.77 $61.94
Princeton, New Jersey 1988 208 5330 81.3% $86.38 $70.20
Somers Point, New Jersey 1988 120 4,092 73.7% $126.85 $93.43
Tinton Falls, New Jersey 1988 96 3,074 80.1% $108.90 $87.27
Tugson, Arizona 1985 i 128 3,179 87.1% $78.10 $68.04
Holiday Inn:
Bluefield, West Virginia 1980 120 2,046 68.8% $67.95 $46.72
Charleston (Mt. Pleasant), South Carclina 1988 158 2,681 55.8% $83.33 $46.48
Oak Hill, West Virginia 1983 119 1,196 47.7% $57.74 $27.54
Wilkesboro, North Carolina (3) (4) 1985 101 938 63.4% $66.65 $42.25
Winston-Salem, North Carolina 1969 160 1,563 49.3% $54.63 $26.94
Homewood Suites:
Augusta, Georgia 1997 65 1,702 75.5% $95.07 $71.75
Chicago, Hlinois 1999 235 9,227 79.2% $136.93 $108.49
Cincinnati (Sharonville), Ohio 1990 111 2,150 68.6% $77.34 $53.07
Hartford, Connecticut 1990 132 3,480 68.2% $105.84 $72.22
Memphis (Germantown), Tennessee 1996 92 2,007 70.9% $84.24 $59.76
Orlando, Florida 1999 252 6,022 79.6% $82.22 $65.47
Phoenix, Arizona 1996 124 2,799 65.8% $93.98 $61.83
San Antonio, Texas 1996 123 2,975 76.1% $87.07 $66.27
Seattle, Washington 1998 161 4,903 80.8% $103.26 $83.43
AmeriSuites:
Albuguerque, New Mexico 1997 128 2,821 87.9% $68.70 $60.37
Baltimore, Maryland 1996 128 2,919 76.7% $81.50 $62.47
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 1997 128 2,131 61.5% $74.15 $45.58
Birmingham, Alabama 1997 128 2,272 76.5% $63.51 $48.61
Cincinnati (Blue Ash), Ohio 1990 127 1,264 47.1% $57.92 $27.28
Cincinnati (Forest Park), Ohio 1992 126 1,638 50.8% $70.14 $35.61
Columbus, Ohio 1994 126 2,037 62.5% $70.83 $44.27
Flagstaff, Arizona 1993 117 1,856 69.4% $62.58 $43.43
Indianapolis, Indiana 1892 126 2,060 62.5% $71.72 $44.80
Jacksonville, Florida (3) (4) 1996 112 1,637 73.2% $60.45 $44.24
Las Vegas, Nevada 1998 202 4,360 80.7% $73.28 $59.14
Kansas City (Overland Park), Kansas 1994 126 1,649 55.3% $64.78 $35.85
Memphis (Wolfchase), Tennessee 1996 128 1,800 59.5% $64.79 $38.53
Miami, Florida 1996 126 2,226 79.3% $61.05 $48.40
Miami (Kendall), Florida 1996 67 1,869 83.2% $91.85 $76.41
Minneapolis, Minnesota 1997 128 2,573 72.8% $75.65 $55.07
Nashville, Tennessee 1997 128 1,935 66.0% $62.74 $41.41
Richmond, Virginia 1992 126 1,967 70.8% $60.41 $42.77
Tampa, Florida 1994 126 2,581 74.1% $75.57 $56.01
Consolidated Totals/Weighted
Average for all Hotels 12,460 $225432 66.7% $75.99 $50.72

Amounts in thousands.

Determined by multiplying occupancy times the average daily rate.

Operations of these hotels are classified as discontinued operations in our accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
Represents a partial year of operations, as these hotels were sold during 2003.
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We are involved in various legal actions Jar ising in the ordinary course of business. Management
does not believe that any of the pending aptrons will have a material adverse effect on our business,
financiai condition or results of operatrorre

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDRINGS

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTER§ TO AVOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of or%rr shareholders during the fourth quarter of 2003, through
the solicitation of proxies or otherwise. ]
|
ITEMS. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS‘:

(a) Market Information
The Company's common stock, $.01 par value, is traded on the NYSE under the symbol "ENN."
The following table sets forth for the indicated periods the high and low closing prices for the
common stock as traded through the facilities of the NYSE and the cash distributions declared per
share:

Distributions

Rrice Range Declared Record
High Low Per Share Date
Year Ended December 31, 2002: -
First Quarter $8134 $6.92 $0.12 March 29, 2002
Second Quarter $8134 $6.92 $0.13 June 28, 2002
Third Quarter $7.59 $5.85 $0.13 September 30, 2002
Fourth Quarter $6135 $5.03 $0.13 December 31, 2002
Year Ended December 31, 2003: f
First Quarter $6/13 $5.28 $0.13 March 31, 2003
Second Quarter $7:37 $5.20 $C.13 June 3C, 2003
Third Quarter $7.75 $6.42 $0.13 September 30, 2003

Fourth Quarter $e _:34 $7.72 $0.13 Decamber 31, 2003

(o)) Shareholder Information ,
On March 3, 2004, there were 731 record holders of the Company's common stock, including
shares held in "street name" by nommees who are record holders, and approximately 21,000
beneficial owners. ‘
(c) Distributions :
We have adopted a policy of paying regular quarterly distributions on our commen stock, and cash
distributions were paid on our common stock each quarter since our initial public offering in March
1994, through the third quarter of 2001.; Due to the economic impact of the events of September
11, 2001 on the lodging industry, we dld not declare or pay a distribution for the fourth quarter of
2001. We again began paying dlstrrbutlons in the first quarter of 2002. Earnings and profits
determine whether distributions to our shareholders are taxable as ordinary income or are a non-
taxabie return of capital. Earnings and profuts for federal income tax purpcses will differ from net
income reported for financiai purposes [orlmarrly due to the difference for federal tax purposes in the
estimated lives used to compute deprecratlon on our hotels.

r
We expect to make future quarterly drs“trlbu‘tlons to our shareholders. The amount of our future
distributions will be based upon quar‘terly operating results, economic conditions, capital
requirements, the Internal Revenue Code s annual distribution requirements, leverage restrictions
imposed by our Line of Credit and otherg factors which our Board of Directors deems relevant.
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A portion of the distribution to our shareholders is expected to represent a return of capital for
federal income tax purposes. Cur distributions made in 2003, 2002 and 2001 are considered to be
approximately 1%, 3% and 21% return of capital, respectively, for federal income tax purposes.

(o) Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

During the year ended December 31, 2003, we issued 51,521 shares of common stock in
transactions exempt from registration pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, upon the redemption of units of limited partnership interest in our Partnership.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selected historical financial data for the Company that has been
derived from the financial statements of the Company and the notes thereto. Such data should be
read in conjunction with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations" and all of the financial statements and notes thereto.

EQUITY INNS, INC.
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(in thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Operating Data:
Revenue (1) $230,092 $229,416 $215,556 $112,503 $112,818
Income (loss) from continuing operations (1) (10,294) 5767 9,676 18,868 27,331
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (1) (3,395) 697 488 (2,528) 1,985
Net income {loss) (1) (13,689) 6,464 10,164 18,340 29,316
Preferred stock dividends 6,823 6,531 6,531 6,531 6,531
Net income (loss) applicable to
common shareholders (22,920) (67) 3,633 9,809 22,785
Net income (loss) from continuing
operations per common share,
basic and diluted (.48) (.02) .09 .34 .56
Net income (loss) per common
share, basic and diluted (.56) .00 A0 27 681
Distributions declared per
common share and unit .52 .51 .75 1.06 1.24
Weighted average number of
common shares outstanding-diluted 40,999 39,628 36,834 36,698 37,225
Balance Sheet Data:
Investments in hotel properties,
net $681,478 $740,146 $751,891 $772,411 $814,537
Total assets 724,281 774,452 778,079 801,743 832,119
Debt 329,774 362,881 384,166 383,403 381,175
Minority interests in Partnership 7,338 8,782 9,512 10,370 12,008
Shareholders' Equity 356,386 366,267 358,164 383,786 412,252
Cash Fiow Data: :
Cash flows provided by operating activities $33,947 $43,804 $68,568 $58,010 $71515
Cash flows provided by (used in)
investing activities 1,928 (25,327) (20,925) {(2,201) (61,898)
Cash flows used in financing activities (33,590) (16,920) (44,077) (55,377) (9,655)
Other Data:
Funds From Operations (2) $14,707 $40,885 $44 646 $53,729 $61,180
Adjusted Funds From Operations (2) 31,497 34,560 44 336 53,729 61,180

(1) Beginning in 2001, our consolidated results of operations reflect (i) hotel-level revenues and
operating costs and expenses for hotels previously leased to subsidiaries of Interstate and (ii)
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percentage lease revenue from su&?sucﬂ aries of Prime. Prior tc 2001, our revenues consisted

principally of iease revenue from its 'third] party lessees and did not refiect hotei-level revenues

and operating costs and expenses.| Beginning in 2002, our consolidated results of operations
reflect hotel-level revenues and opera‘&mg expenses for all the hotels owned during the year.

See ltem 7, Management's Duscussmn and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuliis of
Operations, appearing on pages 20 and 21, for a detailed discussion and reconciliation of net
income {o funds from operations and adjusied funds from operaticns.

{:

MANAGEMENT'S DI SCUSS ON AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATI ONS

4!
Comparison of the Company's operatmg resulls for the year ended December 31, 2003 with the
year ended December 31, 2002.

(@)

ITEM 7.

Results of Operations

Revenues |
y
y

Hotel revenues of approximately $229.5,million for 2003 were re atlveﬂy fiat as compared to 2002.

After eliminating revenues from one hotel
hotel revenues decreased by approxima;
to a RevPAR decline of 1.6%, driven pri

Other revenue of approximately $620,00
compared to apprommately $850,000 in

| acquisition for the full year in both pericds, our same-store
eﬂy $3.8 million in 2003 as compared to 2002, primarily due
manly by a decline in our ADR from $77.59 to $75.88.

3 for 2003 decreased approximately $330,000, or 35%, as
' 2002 primarily due to a decrease in the income received

from the provision of certain management services related to our joint venture, GHII, LLC.

Onperating Expenses

w
1
|

Hotel expenses of approximately $138.0imillion for 2003 were relatively flat as compared to 2002.
After eliminating expenses from one hotel acquisition for the full year in both periods, our same-store
hotel expenses decreased by appromma{ely $1.4 million in 2003 as compared to 2002, primarily due
to an increase in Prime's minimum net operatmg income guarantee to us under cur management
agreements of approximately $1.1 m|ll|on a decrease in maintenance costs of approximately
$630,000 and a net reduction in payroll and related benefits of approximately $410,000, partially
offset by an increase in utility and msurance expenses of approximately $865,000. Hotel expenses
as a percentage of hotel revenues were 60% in 2003 and 2002.

I

Depreciation expense of approximateﬂyj$38.5 million for 2003 was relatively flat as comparad to

2002.

Property taxes, rental expense and insurl'ance of approximately $17.7 miliion in 2003 was relatively
flat as compared to 2002. Properly taxes and insurance expenses increased approximaiely
$450,000 primarily due to our one hotel

ejzscquisi‘tion that was mostly offset by a reduction in our land
lease expense. ’

General and administrative expenses of approximately $7.4 millien for 2003 increased
approximately $810,000, or 12%, as compared to approximately $6.6 million in 2002. This increase
was primarily due to increased professw?nal fees of approximately $60,000, increased insurance of
approximately $100,000, increased franchlse taxes of approximately $400,000 and increased
incentives wages and related benefiis of approximately $500,000, partiaily offset by a reduction in
our non-cash compensation of $160,000.
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Operating Income

For 2003, we recorded operating income of approximately $28.8 miliion as compared to operating
income of approximately $30.3 million for 2002. The principal component of the change in operating
income for 2003 as compared to 2002 was an increase of approximately $1.8 million related to one
hotel acquisition, a decrease in same-store hotel revenues of approximately $3.8 miliion, a decrease
in other revenue of approximately $330,000, partially offset by a net reduction of same-store hotel
expenses and general and administrative expenses of approximately $600,000.

Comparison of the Company's operating results for the year ended December 31, 2002 with the
year ended December 31, 2001.

Historical

On a historical basis, in 2002 {otal revenue and total expenses increased approximately $13.9
million and $22.7 million, to approximately $229.4 million and $199.1 million, respectively, as
compared to 2001, primarily as a resuit of reporting hotel revenues and expenses in 2002 compared
to reporting a combination of hotel revenues and percentage lease revenues in 2001, as a result
of the termination of our Prime leases on January 1, 2002.

Pro Forma

During 2001, our revenues primarily represented rental income from 12 AmeriSuites hotels leased
by Prime and hotel-level revenues from 77 hotels leased to our TRS Lessees and operated under
independent management contracts. Upon the termination of the leases with Prime, beginning in
January 2002, all of our hoteis were leased to the TRS Lessees and operated under independent
management contracts. Consequently, beginning January 1, 2002, our consolidated results of
operations reflect hotal-level revenues and operating expenses for all of our hotels. [n order to show
comparability of our resulis of operations, we have presented below & pro forma preseniation of
2002 and 2001.

Because of the significant changes to our corporate structure as a result of the termination of the
Prime leases effective January 1, 2002, we believe that a discussion of our pro forma results for the
19 hotels that were subject to third-party leases in 2001 is meaningful and relevant to an investor's
understanding of our present and future operations. The pro forma adjustments required to reflect
the termination of the Prime Ieases are to record hotel-level revenues and expenses and reduce
historical rental income with respect to these 19 properties.




The following table separately sets forth a ;comparru'son of ail our hotels leased to the TRS Lessees

(in thousands): |
For the Years Ended

: Pro Forma Pro Forma
December 31, December 31,| December 31, December31, December 31, December31,
2002 2001 ' 2002 2001 2002 2001
77 Hotels and Corporate | 19 Hotels (AmeriSuites) Total

Hotel revenues $186,074 $189,300 $42,390 $45,339 $228,464 $234,639
Other revenue 952 2,039 | 952 2,039
Hotel expenses 116,839 112,466 | 19,460 21,736 136,209 134,202
Depreciation 31,108 31,5486 7,487 7,178 38,593 38,724
Property taxes, .

rental expense

and insurance 14,355 11,935 | 3,261 3,402 17,616 15,337
General and '

administrative 6,560 6,644 | 6,560 6,644
impairment of ‘

long-lived assets 550 550
Provisions for

doubtful accounts 25 2,717 . 25 2717
Operating income  $ 18,141 $ 25481 | $12.182 $13.023 $ 30323 $ 38,504

Pro forma numbers presented represent our historical revenues and expenses, adjusted as
described by pro forma changes below. |

Pro forma adjustments:

(a) Total revenue adjustments consist of the changes in historical revenue from the elimination of
historical percentage lease revenue and ?he addition of historical hote! operating revenues for the

18 AmeriSuites hotels. ]

!
(b) Total operating expense adjustments {éons'stt of: (i) the changes in historical operating expenses
from the addition of historical hotei operatmg expenses and the elimination of percentage lease
expense for the 19 AmeriSuites hotels; and (i) the adjustment to record management fees at their

new contractual rates as a component of hotel expenses.

The pro forma financial infermation dees not purport {0 represent what cur resuits of operations or
financial condition would actually have be@n if the transactions had in fact occurred at the beginning
of 2001 or to project our resuits of opera‘tnons or financial condition for any future period. The pre
forma financial information is based upon availabie information and upon assumptions and
estimates that management believes arq reasonabie under the circumstances.

1.
Revenues ’
Hotel revenues of approximately $228.5 Lmlhon for 2002 decreased approximately $6.2 million, or
2.6%, as compared to approximately $234 8 millicn in 2001 on a pro forma basis. The decrease
in revenue is primarily due to 2 RevPAR decline cf 2.1% as compared tc 2001. Cur occupancy
increased 83 points to 66.3% as compared to 2001, and our ADR decreased 3.3% to $77.59 as

compared to 2001. ‘,

Other revenue of approximately $950, 000 for 2002 decreased approximately $1.1 million, or 53%,
as compared to approximately $2.0 mmuon in 2001. This decrease was primarily due to a decrease
of $550,000 in the income received from ‘the provision of certain management services to our joint
venture, GHII, LLC and a decrease in mlsceﬂ!aneous income of approximately $330,000 related to
linen inventory in conjunction with the creamon of our TRS Lessess.
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Operating Expenses

Hotel expenses of approximately $136.3 million for 2002 million increased approximately $2.1
million, or 1.6%, as compared to approximately $134.2 million in 2001 on a pro forma basis. The
increase in hotel expenses is primarily due to increased insurance premiums and increased payroll
and employee benefits. Hotel expenses as a percentage of hotel revenues were 60% in 2002 and
57% in 2001 on a pro forma basis.

Depreciation expense of approximately $38.6 miilion for 2002 was relatively flat as compared to
2001.

Property taxes, rental expense and insurance expenses of approximately $17.6 million for 2002
increased approximately $2.3 million, or 15%, as compared to approximately $15.3 million in 2001.
The increase was primarily due to an increase of approximately $68,000 in our land lease expense,
an increase of approximately $247,000 in real estate taxes and an increase in insurance expense
of approximately $2.0 million due to the aftermath of the September 11, 2001 national tragedy.

General and administrative expenses of approximately $6.6 million for 2002 remained relatively flat
as compared to 2001,

For 2002, we recorded $25,000 in charges related to provisions for doubtful accounts as compared
to approximateiy $3.3 million in 2001 related to an impairment of long-lived assets combined with
provisions for doubtful accounts.

Operating Income

For 2002, we recorded operating income of approximately $30.3 miliion as compared {o operating
income of approximately $38.5 million for 2001 on a pro forma basis. The principal factors relating
to the change in operating income for 2002 as compared to 2001 was a decrease of approximately
$6.2 million related to our hotel revenues on a pro forma basis, an increase in hotel expenses of
approximately $2.1 million on a pro forma basis, an increase in property taxes, rental expense and
insurance of approximately $2.3 million, partiaily offset by an impairment charge of $550,000 and
provisions for doubtful accounts of approximately $2.7 million recorded in 2001.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

Equity inns' principal source of cash to meet its operating requirements, including distributions o
our shareholders and repayments of indebtedness, is from our hotels' results of operations. For
2003, net cash flows provided by our operating activities was approximately $33.9 million. We
currently expect that our operating cash flows will be sufficient to fund our continuing operations,
including our required debt service obligations and distributions to shareholders required to maintain
our REIT status. We expect to fund any short-term liquidity requirements above our operating cash
flows through short-term borrowings under our Line of Credit. In June 2003, we entered into our
collateralized Line of Credit for $110 million, subject to certain restrictions. Borrowings under the
Line of Credit bear interest at LIBOR plus 2.25% to 3.0% per annum as determined by the quarterly
leverage of Equity inns, and this facility matures in June 2008. The Line of Credit maintains certain
restrictions regarding capital expenditures and other quarterly financial covenants, including a test
for free cash flow for dividend payouts, a fixed charge test and a leverage test, among other
covenants. At December 31, 2003, we had the ability to borrow over $50 million under our Line of
Credit.

During 2003, we raised $29.9 million in net equity through a combination of common and preferred
offerings. The net proceeds from the issuances were used to pay down our Line of Credit.
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Curing 2003, we soid four hotels (Hamp]‘ton Inn in Ft. Worth, Texas; Hampton Inn & Suites in
Bartlett, Tennessee; Holiday Inn Expreiés in Wilkesboro, North Carolina and AmeriSuites in
Jacksonville, Florida) for an aggregate price of $20.1 million, resulling in a gain on these sales of
approximately $1.6 million, net of impairme‘nt charges previously recorded. Approximately $418,000
of this gain has been deferred by the Company. The sales prices were paid in cash, except for the
Jacksonville hotel, $4.0 million of which was in the form of a 15-month note bearing interest at

7.75% per annum. The proceeds were uﬂlizeo) to pay down our long-term debt.

We may make additional investments in hb‘cel properties and may incur indebtedness to make such
investments or to meet distribution requwements imposed on a REIT under the Internai Revenue
Code of 1986 to the extent that working capltal and cash flows from our investments are insufficient
to make such distributions. Our Board of Directors has adopted a policy limiting aggregate
indebtedness to 45% of our investment m;’hotel properties, at cost, after giving effect to our use of
proceeds from any indebtedness. Thisi policy may be amended at any time by the Board of
Directors without sharehoider vote. Our consolidated indebtedness was 35.3% of our investments
in hotels, at original cost, at December 31, 2003.

The following details our debt outstandiné at December 31, 2003 and 2002 (in thousands):

i Collateral Net Book
Principal Balance _ | Interest # of Value at
12/31/03  12/31/02 ¢ Rate Maturity Hotels 12/31/03
Commercial Mortgage Bonds [
Class A $ 4,061 $ 8,464 ! 6.83% Fixed Nov 2006
Class B 50,600 50,600 7.37% Fixed Dec 2015
Class C 10,000 10.000 ! 7.58% Fixed Feb 2017
64,661 69,064 | 20 $105,705
Line of Credit 50,000 85,900 | LIBOR plus Variable June 2006 26 228,161
” Percentage
|
Mortgage 91,009 92,584 | 8.37% Fixed July 2009 19 156,417
Mortgage 66,881 67,890 | 8.25% Fixed Nov 2010 16 101,419
Mortgage 34,612 35,100, 8.25% Fixed Nov 2010 8 56,133
Mortgage 10,750 i LIBOR plus
: 285 pts. Variable August 2008 1 15,459
Mortgage 2,912 2,996 | 6.00% Fixed May 2008 1 6,691
Mortgage 5,431 5,662 10.00% Fixed Sept 2005 1 10,977
Mortgage 3508 3,685, 6.37% Fixed Nov 2018 1 7.880
$329,774 $362.881| $688.842

The Company's weighted average interest rate for 2003,and 2002 was 7.92% and 8.03%, respectively.

On March 20, 2003, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a financial institution on
a notional amount of $25 million. The agreement became effective in November 2003 and expires
in November 2008. The agreement eﬁectlvely fixes the interest rate on the first $25 million of
floating rate debt cutstanding under our Line of Credit at a rate of 3.875% per annum plus the
interest rate spread on our Line of Credit,ithus reducing exposure to interest rate fiuctuations. The
notional amount does not represent amounts exchanged by the parties, and thus is not a measure
of exposure to us. The differences to joe paid or received by us under the interest rate swap
agreement are recognized as an adjus‘tment to interest expense. The agreement is with a major
financial institution, which is expected to, fully perform under the terms of the agreement.

L
On March 20, 2003, we entered into an mterest rate swap agreement with a financial institution on
a notional amount of $25 million. The agreement became effective in November 2003 and expires
in November 2006. The agreement eﬁecilvely fixes the interests rate on the second $25 miilion of
floating rate debt outstanding under our ﬂ_lme of Credit at a rate of 3.22% per annum plus the interest
rate spread on our Line of Credit, thus reducmg exposure to interest rate fluctuations. The notional
amount does not represent amounis exchanged by the parties, and thus is not a measure of

)
|
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exposure to us. The differences to be paid or received by us under the interest rate swap
agreement are recognized as an adjustment to interest expense. The agreement is with 2 major
financial institution, which is expected to fully perform under the terms of the agresment.

During 2003, we invested $13.3 million to fund capital improvements in our hotels, including
replacement of carpets, drapes, renovation of common areas and improvements of hotel exteriors.
In addition, we expect to fund approximately $17 million in 2004 for capital improvements with $3.5
million representing one-time upgrades to certain of our hotel properties. We intend to fund such
improvemenits out of future cash flows from operations, current cash balances and borrowings under
our Line of Credit. Under certain of our loan covenants, we are obligated to fund 4% of room
revenues per quarter on a cumulative basis, to a separate room renovation account for the ongoing
replacement or refurbishment of furniture, fixtures and equipment at our hotels. For 2003 and 2002,
the amounts expended exceeded, in aggregate, the amounts required under the loan covenants.

REITs are subject to @ number of crganizational and operational requirements. For example, for
federal income tax purposes, a REIT, and therefore the Company, is required to pay distributions
of at ieast 90% of its taxable income to our shareholders. We intend to pay these distributions from
operating cash flows. During 2003, our Partnership distributed an aggregate of $21.9 million to our
partners, or $.52 per unit (including $21.3 million of distributions to the Company to fund distributions
to our sharenolders of $.52 per share in 2003). During 2002, our Partnership distributed an
aggregate of $21.2 million to our partners, or $.51 per share. We expect to make future quarterly
distributions to our shareholders. The amount of our future distributions will be based upon quarterly
operating results, economic conditions, capital requirements, the Internal Revenue Code's annual
distribution requirements, leverage resirictions imposed by our Line of Credit and other factors which
our Board of Directors deems relevant.

We expect to meet our long-term liquidity requirements, such as scheduled debt maturities and
property acquisitions, through long-term secured and unsecured borrowings, the issuance of
additional equity securities of the Company or, in connection with acquisitions of hotel properties,
the issuance of Partnership units. Under our Partnership's limited partnership agreement, subject
to certain holding period requirements, holders of units in our Partnership have the right to require
the Partnership to redeem their units. During 2003, 51,521 units were tendered for redemption.
Under the Parinership agreement, we have the option to redeem units tendered for redemption on
a one-for-one basis for shares of common stock or for an equivalent amount of cash. We anticipate
that we will acquire any units tendered for redemption in the foreseeable future in exchange for
shares of common stock and, to date, have registered such shares so as to be freely tradeable by
the recipient.

We have obligations and commiiments to make future payments under debt and operating lease
contracts. The following schedule details these obligations at December 31, 2003 (in thousands):

Less than After
Total 1 vear 1-3 years 4-5 years 5 years
Long-term debt $328,774 $6,074 $68,856 $30,480 $224 364
Operating leases 13,681 968 1904 1,553 8,256

Total contractual

obligations $343,455 $7.042 $70.760 $32.033 $233.620
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Funds from Operations )‘

The National Association of Real Esﬁaﬁc—lé Investment Trusts, or NAREIT, defines Funds From
Cperations, or FFO, as net income (cor]hputed in accordance with GAAP) exciuding gains (or
losses) from szles of real estate, the cumuﬂatave effect of changes in accounting principles, real
estate-related depreciation and amorti zamon and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships
and joint ventures. FFO is presented on a per share basis after making adjustments for the effects
of dilutive securities. We use FFO per share as a measure of performance to adjust for certain non-
cash expenses such as depreciaticn andjamortization because historical cost accounting for real
estate assets implicitly assumes that theivalue of real estate assets diminishes predictably over
time. |
NAREIT adopted the definition of FFO ﬁn}order tc promote an industry-wide standard measure of
REIT operating performance. Accordingly, as a member of NARE(T, we adopted FFO as a
measure to evaluate performance and facuh‘tate comparisons between us and other REITs, although
FFO and FFO per share may not be comfpau'abﬂe to those measures reporied by other companies.

|
Adjusted FFO #
We have further adjusted FFO for a provision for doubtful accounts related to a note receivable,
losses on impairment of hotels held for sa)i!e original issuance cost of redeemed Series A prefewed
stock, our non-cash deferred income tax v‘aﬂuatnon allowance and deferred income tax benefits. We
refer to this as Adjusted Funds From Operations, or AFFO. Our computation of AFFO and AFFO
per share is not comparable tc the NAREHT definition of FFO or to similar measures reported by
other REITs, but we believe it is an appm@na‘te measure for our Company. We use AFFO because
we believe that this measure provndes investors a more useful indicator of the operating
performance of our hoteis by adjusting for the effects of certain non-cash items arising from our
investing and financing activities and our mcome tax reporting. AFFO per share is also used by the
Compensation Committee of our Board :)f Directors as cne of the criteria for performance-based

compensation. |
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The following reconciliation of net income to FFO and AFFO illustrates the difference in these
measures of operating performance:
For the Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(in thousands, except per share and unit data)

Net income (loss) $(13,689) $ 6,464 310,164
Less:
Gain on sale of hotel properties (1,248) (83)
Preferred stock dividends (6,823) (6,531) (6,531)
Loss on redemption of Series A Preferred Stock (2,408)
Add:
Minority interest (495) (2) 119
Depreciation of buildings,
furniture and fixtures 38.370 40,954 40877
Funds From Operations 14,707 40,885 44 646
Add other items:
Provision for doubtful accounts 2,592
Impairment of long-lived assets 4,605 550
Loss on redemption of Series A Preferred Stock 2,408
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance 16,789
Less:
Income tax benefit (7.012) (6.325) _(3,452)
Adjusted Funds From Operations $31.497 $34,560 44,336

Weighted average number of
diluted common shares and
units outstanding 42,151 40.82

:
:

inflation

Operators of hotels in general have the ability to adjust room rates quickly. However, competitive
pressures may limit our ability to raise room rates in the face of infiation.

Seasonality

Hotel operations historically are seasonal in nature, generally reflecting higher occupancy rates and
RevPAR during the second and third quarters. This seasonality can be expected to cause
fluctuations in our quarterly results of operations.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Note 14 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements discusses the expected impact of
accounting policies recently issued or proposed but not yet required to be adopted. To the extent
the adoption of new accounting standards affects our financial condition, results of operations or
liquidity, the impacts are discussed in the applicable section(s) of the Management's Discussion and
Analysis and the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Eetém%&ee
The Company's discussion and analysis|of our financial condition and resulis of operations are
based upon our consolidated financiai statements which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted |n the United States of America. The preparation of these
financial statements requires our management to make estimates and judgments that affect the
reported amount of assets, liabilities, revemues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent

assets and liabilities.

|

On an on-going basis, all estimates are e{/aluated by our management, inciuding those reiated to
bad debts, carrying value of lnvestments in hotel properties, income taxes, contingencies and
litigation. All estimates are based upon historical experience and on various other assumptions that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the resuits of which form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying va!ues of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may dlfﬁfer from these estimates under different assumptions or
conditions. !

!
We believe the following critical accountlng policies affect our more significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of our ?onsollda‘ted financial statements:

We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of
our customers and other borrowers {o make required payments. If the financial condition of our
customers or other borrowers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional allowances may be required.

We record an impairment charge when we believe an investment in hotels has been impaired
such that future undiscounted cash ﬂows would not recover the book basis of the investment in
the hotel property. Future adverse changes in market conditions or poor operating resulis of
underlying investments could result inflosses or an inability to recover the carrying value of the
investments that may not be reflected in an investment's carrying value, thereby possibly
requiring an impairment charge in theffuture.

We record a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax asset to the amount that is more
likely than not to be realized. We have considered future taxable income and ongoing prudent
and feasible tax planning strategies injassessing the need for a vaiuation allowance. We have
determined that a fuil valuation allowance is needed for the Company's deferred tax asset at
December 31, 2003. If our management determines that we will be able to realize all or part of
our net deferred tax asset in the future an adjustment to the valuation allowance would be
charged to income in the periods suc?]ﬁ determination was made.

Other Developments ;

Acquisitions
|

In iate 2003 and early 2004, we announced our intent to purchase nine hotels from the McKibbon
Hotel Group. All of these transactions are expecied to close by the end of May 2004. The total
purchase price for the nine hotels is approximately $70 million, including the assumption of
approximately $37 million in secured debt, and we expect to fund these acquisitions primarily
through borrowings under our Line of Credl‘t and the additional issuance of equity securities. The
average age of these nine hotels is seven years.

On January 28, 2004, the Company com bleted the acquisition of the above-mentioned hotel, a 93-
room Marriott Courtyard hotel located in Tlallahassee, Florida, for approximately $9.8 million in cash.
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Long-Lived Asset Impairments and Sales

During the second and fourth quarters of 2003, we recorded charges for impairments of
approximately $3.6 million and $1.0 million, respectively, in accordance with SFAS No. 144,
"Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets," as a result of our strategic
decision to market four properties for sale. Consequently, we have accounted for the operations
of such properties as discontinued in each of the periods presented.

During January 2004, we sold two of these hotels (Hampton inn, Jacksonville, Florida, and Hampton
Inn, Sarasota, Florida) for an aggregate sales price of approximately $8.0 million. We used a
portion of the proceeds of these sales to repay borrowings under our secured long-term debt and
to pay related prepayment penalties of $400,000. As a condition to the sale of the Jacksonville
Hampton Inn, the Company agreed to increase its note receivable from HM-NM, inc. by $800,000,
and applied this amount toward the purchase price of the Jacksonville Hampton Inn. The increased
amount of the note is due and payabie in February 2005, bears interest at 7.75% per annum, and
is secured by the land, building, furniture and fixtures of the AmeriSuites hotel (sold to the same
buyer in November 2003) located at 8277 Western Way Circle, Jacksonville, Florida.

Recording of Income Tax Valuation Allowance

At year-end 2003, we determined that a valuation allowance was necessary for our entire deferred
income tax asset due to the continued softness in the lodging industry and the uncertainty
associated with its future recovery. Accordingly, we recorded an approximate $16.8 million non-
cash valuation allowance ($16.2 million after minority interests consideration) associated with our
deferred income tax asset in accordance with SFAS Na. 109, "Accounting for income Taxes."
Additionally, we will discontinue recording a deferred income tax benefit for 2004.

Hotel Development

We intend to develop a 200-room, full service Marriott hotel in Sandy, Utah, a suburb of Salt Lake
City, Utah. We estimate that the development cost of this hote!l will be approximately $24.0 million,
including approximately $2.2 million in land previously purchased by us, and will be completed by
mid-2008.

Line of Credit

On January 21, 2004, we amended our Line of Credit io provide for more flexibility regarding our
financial covenants through June 2006. We incurred an amendment fee of approximately $37,000.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISKS

We are exposed to certain financial market risks, the most predominant of which is the fluctuation
in interest rates. At December 31, 2003, our exposure to market risk for a change in interest rates
is related to our debt outstanding under the Line of Credit and certain hotel secured debt. Total debt
outstanding under these two debentures totaled $60.8 million at December 31, 2003.

Our Line of Credit bears interest at a variable rate of LIBOR plus 2.25% to 3.0% per annum as
determined by our guarterly leverage. At December 31, 2003, our interest rate on our Line of Credit
was LIBOR (1.17% at December 31, 2003) plus 2.75%. Our interest rate risk objective is to limit the
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impact of interest rate fluctuations on eav‘nmgs and cash flows and to lower our overall borrowing
costs. To achieve this objective, we manage our exposure to fluctuations in market interest rates
for our borrowings through the use of ﬂlﬁ(ed rate debt instruments to the extent that reasonably
favorable rates are obtainable through suc'h arrangements and derivative financial instruments such
as interest rate swaps, to effectively lock the interest rate on 2 portion of our variable rate debt. We
do not enter into derivative or interest rate/transactions for speculative purposes. We also regularly
review interest rate exposure on our ou?stancﬂmg borrowings in an effort to minimize the risk of
interest rate fluctuation. 1

On March 20, 2003, we entered into an m%erest rate swap agreement with a financial institution on
a notional amount of $25 million. The agreemen*t became effective in November 2003 and expires
in November 2008. The agreement eﬁéc‘tuvely fixes the interest rate on the first $25 million of
floating rate debt ouistanding under ouH Line of Credit at a rate of 3.875% per annum plus the
interest rate spread on our Line of Credit, \fthus reducing exposure to interest rate fluctuations. The
notional amount does not represent amounis exchanged by the parties, and thus is not a measure
of exposure to the Company. The differences to be paid or received by the Company under the
interest rate swap agreement are recogmzecﬂ as an adjustment to interest expense. The agreement
is with a major financial institution, wh|ch is expected to fully perform under the terms of the

agreement.

On March 20, 2003, we entered into an mterest rate swap agreement with a financial institution on
a notional amount of $25 million. The agqeement became effective in November 2003 and expires
in November 2006. The agreement effectively fixes the interests rate on the second $25 miliion of
floating rate debt outstanding under our Lme of Credit at a rate of 3.22% per annum plus the interest
rate spread on our Line of Credit, thus reducmg exposure {o interest rate fluctuations. The notionai
amount does not represent amounts exchanged by the parties, and thus is not 2 measure of
exposure to the Company. The dnﬁ‘erences to be paid or received by the Company under the
interest rate swap agreement are recogmzed as an adjustment to interest expense. The agreement
is with 2 major financial institution, whlch is expected to fully perform under the terms of the
agreement.

At December 31, 2003, we had no varﬁab:e rate debt outstanding under our Line of Credit that was
exposed to fluctuations in the market rate of interest due to the two interest rate swaps ciscussed
above.

Our Line of Credit matures in June 2008. [ As discussed above, our Line of Credit bears interest at
variable rates, and therefore, cost approxi},’rna‘tes market value. At December 31, 2003, the fair value
liability of our interest rate swaps was approximately $930,000.

Our operating results are affected by ichanges in interest rates, primarily as a result of our
borrowings under the Line of Credit. ﬂf;m‘teresft rates increased by 25 basis points, our interest
expense would have increased by approximately $74,000, based on balances ouistanding during
2003. '
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ITEM 8. FEINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

(@) Financial Statements:

The following financial statements are located in this report on the pages indicated.

Equity Inns, inc. Page
Report of Independent Auditors 27
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2003 and

2002 28
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended

December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 29
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive income for the

years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 30
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the

years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 31
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended

December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 33
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 34
Schedule !l -- Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years

ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 54
Schedule il -- Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation

as of December 31, 2003 55
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(b) Supplementary Data: ;

Quarterly Financial [nformation
Unaudited quarteriy results for 200:5% and 2002 are summarized as follows:

i First Second Third Fourth

Qm Quarter Quarter Quarter

(in thousands, except per share data)

2003
Revenue $52,275 $61,749 $683,245 $52,823
Net income (loss) applicable |

to common shareholders : (1,674) (1,804) 256 (19,698)
Net income (loss) per common |

share, basic and diluted | (.04) (.04) 01 (.46)
2002 i
Revenue $52 473 $62,061 $62,184 $52,688
Net income (loss) applicable ;

to common shareholders ' (2,267) 2,105 2,020 (1,985)
Net income (loss) per common |

share, basic and diluted (.08) .05 .05 (.05)

Earnings per share amounts for each quar*tev are required to be computed independently and may
not equal the amount computed for the to‘tal year. In the fourth guarter of 2003, we recorded 2 tax
valuation allowance of $16.8 million in accordance with SFAS No. 109. In the second and fourth
quarters of 2003, we recorded charges for impairments of $3.6 million and $1.0 million, respectively,
‘ in accordance with SFAS No. 144. [n the second guarter of 2003, we designated four properties
as held-for-sale and consequently, we have accounted for the operations of such properties as
discontinued in each of the 2003 and 2002 quarters presented above. Reclassification of revenues
to discontinued operations for each of the{quar‘ters presented above are as follows (in thousands):

|
First | Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2003 $2,323 | $447 $448 3 0

2002 3059 | 290 289 2,702
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Report of independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and
Shareholders of Equity Inns, Inc.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index appearing
under item 8(a) on page 25 present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Equity
Inns, Inc. at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the
financial statement schedules listed in the accompanying index appearing under item 8(a) on page
25 present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction
with the related consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and financial
statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company's management; our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our
audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United State of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Memphis, Tennessee
March 2, 2004
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E@UDTY INNS, INC,
CONSOLID IATEI BALANCE SHEETS
(in ﬁhousands except share data)

Assels:

Investment in hotel properties, net

Assets held for sale

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net of doubtfui
accounts of $200 and $150, respectively

Notes receivable, net

Deferred expenses, net

Deferred income tax asset, net

Deposits and other assets, net

Total Assets .

Liabilities and Sharehoiders' Equity:
Long-term debt i
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Distributions payable |
Interest rate swaps :
Minority interests in Partnership |

Total Liabilities
Commitments and contingencies

Shareholders' Equity: >
Preferred stock, $.01 par vaiue, 10,000,000
shares authorized
Preferred stock (Series A), 8.5%, $.01jpar
value, 3,162,500 shares authorized, 0 and
2,750,000 shares issued and cutstanding
Preferred stock (Series B), 8.75%, $. O'ﬂ par
value, 3,450,000 shares authorized, 3 450,000
and 0 shares issued and outsﬁandmg (586,250
aggregate liquidation preference) |
Common stock, $.01 par vaiue, 100 ooo‘ooo
shares authorized, 43,305, 827 and {;
41,220,632 shares issued and outs‘tandmg
Additional paid-in capital ,
Treasury stock, at cost, 747,600 shares |
Unearned directors' and officers’
compensation
Distributions in excess of net earnings
Unrealized loss on interest rate swap
Total Shareholders’ Equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholiders' Equfty
|

December 31,
— 2003

$681,478
10,242
8,201

5,069
4,817
8,291

—6.083
$724.281

$328,774
22,913
6,939
931
7.338

367,885

83,524

433
463,697
(5,173)

(123)
(185,035)

(231)
358,386

$724.281

December 31,

2002

$740,146
5,816

4,143
1,335
8,744
8,777
4,391

$774.452

$362,881
27,817
6,506
2,189
8.782

408,185

68,750

412
445,793
(5,173)

(546)
(140,770)

(2.189)
366,267

$774 452

The accempanying notes are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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EQUITY INNS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Revenue:
Room revenue $218,362 $217,841 $178,999
Other hote! revenue 11,107 10,623 10,301
Other revenue 623 952 2,039
Percentage lease revenue 24,217

Total revenues 230,092 229,416 215,556
Operating expenses:
Direct hotel expenses 129,657 128,803 105,741
Other hotel expenses 8,275 7,496 6,725
Depreciation 38,472 38,593 38,724
Property taxes, rental expense and insurance 17,690 17,616 15,337
General and administrative expenses:

Stock based or non-cash compensation 520 680 g75

Other general and administrative expenses 6,847 5,880 5,669
Impairment of long-lived asseis 550
Provision for doubtful accounts 50 25 2717

Total operating expenses 201,511 199,093 176.438
Operating income 28,581 30,323 39,118
Interest expense 29593 30,389 32,302
Income (loss) from continuing operations

before minority interest and income taxes (1,012) (66) 6,816

Minority interest {495) (2) 119
Deferred income tax (expense) benefit (8.777) 5.831 2,979
Income (loss) from continuing operations (10,294) 5,767 9,676
Discontinued operations:
Gain on sale of hotel properties 1,248 83
Loss on impairment of hotels held for sale (4,605)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (38) 697 405

Income (loss) from discontinued operations (3.395) 697 488
Net income (loss) (13,689) 6,464 10,164
Loss on redemption of Series A Preferred Stock 2,408
Preferred stock dividends 6.823 _ 6531 __ 6531
Net income (loss) applicable to

common shareholders $(22,920) $ (67) $ 3633
Net income (loss) share data:
Basic and diluted income (loss) per share:
Continuing operations (0.48) (0.02) 0.08
Discontinued operations (.08 ___0.02 0.01
Net income (loss) per common share $ __(56) $ (0.00) $§ 10
Weighted average number of common

shares outstanding - basic and diluted 40,999 39,628 _36.834

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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EQUITY INNS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands)

| For the Years Ended December 31,

i 2003 2002 2001
Net income (loss) . $(13,689) $6,464 $10,164
Unreaiized gain (loss) on interest
rate swaps 1,268 724 (2,923)
Comprehensive income (loss) $(12.421) 7.188 $ 7,241

The accompanying notes are an integ ;'al part of these consolidated financial statements.
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EQUITY INNS, INC.
CONSCOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) $(13,6809) $ 6,464 $10,164
Adjustment to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Gain on sale of hotel properties (1,248) (83)
Depreciation and amortization 39,689 41,304 41,327
Loss on impairment of hotels held for sale 4,605
Amortization of loan costs 2,163 2,059 1,964
Amortization of unearned directors' and
officers' compensation 423 592 898
Provision for doubtful accounts 50 25 125
Provision for write-off of note receivable 3,304
Provision for land impairment 550
Directors' stock based compensation 97 88 77
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 9,777 (6,325) (3,452)
Minority interests (495) (2) 119
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (976) (1,634) (2,659)
Due from lessees 162 5433
Notes receivable (596) 75
Deposits and other assets (1,692) (269) 2,571
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (4.757) 1.936 8,155
Net cash flows provided by operating
activities 33,947 43.804 68,568
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of hotel properties (16,320)
Improvements and additions to hotel properties (13,343) (8,890) (22,176)
Cash paid for franchise applications (200) (117)
Proceeds from sale of hotel properties 15,471 1,251
Net cash flows provided by (used in)
investing activities 1,928 (25,327) {20,925)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Gross proceeds from issuance of Series B preferred stock 86,250
Gross proceeds from public offering of common stock 15,100 28,520
Payment of offering expenses (2,746) (1,576)
Redemption of Series A Preferred Stock (68,750)
Distributions paid to common and preferred shareholders
and unit holders (28,332) (22,364) (44,550)
Proceeds from borrowings 47,375 47,375 44,788
Payments on debt (80,482) (68,660) (44,025)
Cash paid for loan costs (2,005) (215) (200
Net cash flows used in financing activities (33,590) (16.920) (44.077)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,285 1,657 3,566
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5916 4,359 793
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 8.201 5916 $ 4,359
Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest $28,327 $29.140 $31.426

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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EQUITY INNS, ING.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
|
In these footnotes, the words "Company" or "Equity Inns" refer to Equity Inns, Inc., 2 Tennessee
corporation, and its consolidated subsmﬂlanes unless otherwise stated or the context requires
otherwise. j‘

1. Organization ‘
Equity Inns is a hotel real estate investmen& trust ("REIT") for federal income tax purposes. The
Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Equity Inns Trust (the "Trust"), is the sole general
partner of Equity Inns Partnership, L.P. (the "Partnership") and at December 31, 2003 owned an
approximate 97.4% interest in the Par‘tnershlp

On January 1, 2001, the REIT Modernlzahon Act ("RMA") went into effect. Among other things, the
RMA permlts a REH’ to form taxable REIT subsuollanes ("TRS") that lease hotels from the REIT
provided that the hotels continue to be managed by unrelated third parties. Effective January 1
2001, the Company completed transactions that resulted in its newly formed TRSs acquiring Ieases
for the hotels that were previously Ieased to subsidiaries of Interstate Hoteis Corporation
("Interstate"). Effective January 1, 2002, ‘the Company completed transactions that resulted in its
newly formed TRSs acqguiring Ieases ‘for the hotels that were previously leased to subsidiaries of
Prime Hospitality Corporation ("Prime"). By acqumng these leases through its TRSs, the Company
acquired the economic benefits and risks of the operations of these hotels and began reporting
hotel-ievel revenues and expenses rather ‘th‘fan percentage lease revenues.

|
At December 31, 2003, our independent hotel managers are as follows:

# of
| Hoiels
Interstate Hotels Corporation 51
Promus Hotels, Inc. (a Hilion Hotels
Corporation subsidiary) | 18
Prime Hospitality Corporation | 18
Other | 6
Total 9

The management agreements with Prime are structured to provide the TRS Lessees minimum net
operating income at each of our 18 AmeriSuites hotels. In addition, the management agreements
specify a net operating income threshold for each of our 18 AmeriSuites hotels. As the manager,
the Prime subsidiaries can earn an incentive management fee of 25% of hotel net operating income
above the threshold, to @ maximum of 6.5% of gross hotel revenues. [f the management fee
exceeds 6.5% of gross hotel revenue, the ane subsidiaries may earn an additional fee of 10% on
any additional net operating income. If 2 ho‘tel fails to generate net operating income sufficient to
reach the threshold, Prime's subsidiaries are required to contribute 25% of the shorifall in net
operating income to the Company. Management records such shortfall contributions as a reduction
of base management fees which are mcluded as a component of direct hotel expenses in our
accompanying consolidated statements of operations when all contingencies related to such
amounts have been resolved. [n May 2003, the Company updated its current franchise contracts
and management agreements with Primeion all of its AmeriSuites hoteis. The minimum net
operating income guarantee agreements were not extended beyond their original terms and are set
to expire between 2007 and 2008. Under the new agreements, Prime and the Company extended
the existing franchise agreements to 2028 and the management agreements to 2010, as long as
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EQUITY INNS, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Prime continues to be in compliance with the minimum net operating income guarantees in the
original agreements. The management contracts for the Company's remaining 75 hotels have terms
ranging from cne to ten years and generally provide for payment of management fees ranging from
1.5% to 2.5% of hotel revenues and an incentive fee consisting of a percentage of gross operating
profits in excess of budget, as defined by the management agreements.

Principles of Consuiidation

The consolidated financial staiements include the accounts of the Company, the Trust, the TRS
Lessees and the Partnership and its affiliates. All significant intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated.

Investment in Hotel Properties

The hotel properties (the "Hotels") are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets which range from 5 to 40 years for
buildings and components and 5 to 7 years for furniture and eguipment.

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred, and major renewals and
improvements are capitalized. Upon disposition, both the asset and accumuiated depreciation
accounts are relieved, and the related gain or loss is credited or charged to the income statement.

if there is an event or a change in circumstances that indicates that the basis of the Company's
investment in the hotel property may not be recoverable, the Company's policy is to assess any
impairment of value. impairment is evaluated based upon comparing the sum of the expected
future cash flows (undiscounied and without interest charges) to the carrying value of the asset. If
the cash flow is less, an impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the carrying value
amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.

Management classifies certain assets as held for sale based on management having the authority
and intent of entering into commitmenis for sale transactions expected to close in the next twelve
months. When management identifies an asset held for sale, the Company estimates the net
selling price of such asset. if the net selling price of the asset is iess than the carrying amount of
the asset, a reserve for loss is established. Depreciation is no longer recorded once management
has identified an asset as held for sale. Net selling price is estimated as the amount at which the
asset could be bought or sold (fair value) less costs to seil. Fair value is determined at prevailing
market conditions, appraisals or current estimated net sales proceeds from pending offers, if
appropriate. Operations for hotels designated as held for sale and hotels which have been sold are
included in discontinued operations for all periods presented. Only interest on debt that is to be
assumed by the buyer and interest on debt that is required to be repaid as a result of the disposal
transaction is allocated to discontinued operations. During the year, the Company recordec
impairments of approximately $4.6 million to write down the assets held for sale to their estimated
fair value less cost to sell. This impairment is refiected in the results of operations for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2003.
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E@UHTY INNS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

|
2. Summary of Significant Accounting‘ Policies, Continued

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1
All highly liguid investments with maturities;of three months or less when purchased are considered
to be cash equivalents.

Deferred Expenses

Deferred expenses are recorded at cost and consist of initial fees paid to franchisors and loan fees
and other costs incurred in issuing debt.| Amortization of franchise fees is computed using the
straight-line method over the lives of the franchise agreements which range up to 20 years.

Amortization of loan fees and other costs incurred in issuing debt is computed using the siraight-line
method, which approximates the interest method, over the term of the related debt. Accumulatied
amontization of deferred expenses totaled approximately $10.0 millien and $7.6 million at December
31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. '
Deposits and Cther Assels

Deposits include escrow deposits and other deposits relating to the Company's mortgage debt.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activ :‘ties

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 133, “"Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities," as émendecﬂ and interpreted, established accounting and
reporting standards for derivative lnstrumﬁnts including certain derivative instruments embedded
in other contracts, and for hedging activities. As required by SFAS No. 133, the Company records

all derivatives on the balance sheet at falrlfvalue

!
The Company's interest rate swap contracts have been designated as cash flow hedges. For
derivatives designated as cash fiow hedges the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the
derivative is initiaily reported in other comprehenswe income (outside of earnings) and subsequently
reclassified to earnings when the hedged f'transactlon affects earnings, and the ineffective portion
of changes in the fair value of the denvdtwe is recognized directly in earnings. The Company
assesses the effectiveness of each hedgmg relationship by comparing the changes in fair value or
cash flows of the derivative hedging mstrument with the changes in fair value or cash flows of the

designated hedged item or transaction.

\

1

The Company's objective in using derivatives is to add stability to interest expense and to manage
its exposure to interest rate movemen‘tsior other identified risks. The Company does not use
derivatives for trading or speculative purposes and currently does not have any derivatives that are
not designated as hedges. To accomphsh this objective, the Company primarily uses interest rate
swaps as pait of its cash flow hedging strategy Interest rate swaps designaied as cash flow
hedges involve the receipt of variable- ra‘te amounts in exchange for fixed-rate payments over the
life of the agreements without exchange of the underlying principal amount. During 2003, such

derivatives were used to hedge the varizble cash flows associated with existing variable-rate debt.
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EQUITY INNS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

No hedge ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges was recognized during 2003.

Amounts reported in accumulated other comprehensive income related to derivatives will be
reclassified to interest expense as interest payments are made on the Company's variable-rate debt.

During 2004, the Company estimates that an insignificant amount of the change in unrealized gains/
losses from accumulated other comprehensive income will be reclassified to interest expense.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from operations of the Hotels managed by third parties is recognized when the services
are provided to hotel guests. For 2001, percentage lease revenue was recognized when earned
from the Prime Lessees under the percentage leases from the date of acquisition of each hotel
property.

Other hotel revenue represents income from telephone, movie rentals and other guest-related
revenue and is recorded when the services are provided to hotel guests.

Operating Costs and Expenses
Direct hotel expenses include expenses reiated to housekeeping, maintenance, reservations,
marketing and advertising, management fees and other costs associated with hotel operations.

Direct hote! expenses also include the operating expenses for food and beverage operations.

Other hotel operating expenses include expenses related to cost of telephone service, movie rental
and other guest-related costs.

Advertising and Marketing

In accordance with the AICPA's Statement of Position ("SOP") No. 93-7, "Reporting on Advertising
Costs," the Company expenses advertising and marketing costs as incurred or as the advertising
takes place. The Company expensed approximately $12.7 million, $12.9 million and $10.3 million
in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, in advertising and marketing costs.

Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of linens and food and beverage items that are recorded at the lower
of cost or market as a component of deposits and other assets in the accompanying balance sheets.

Net Income Per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share from continuing operations are computed by dividing income
(loss) from continuing operations as adjusted for gains or losses on the sale of hotel properties not
included in discontinued operations, for losses on redemptions of preferred stock, and for dividends
on preferred stock by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding.
Diluted earnings per common share from continuing operations are computed by dividing income




EQUITY INNS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

!

|
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Continued

u
(loss) from continuing operations as adjusteoi for gains or losses on the sale of hotel properties not
included in discontinued cperations and for dividends on preferred stock by the weighted average
number of shares of common stock ou'tstandmg plus other potentiaily dilutive securities.

I

Potential dilutive securities included in the Company's calculation of diluted earnings per share
include shares issuable upon exercise of stock options. Potentiaily dilutive shares for the purposes
of this calculation (in thousands) were 0, 0 and 1in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The majority
of the options to purchase shares of the Companys commen stock that were outstanding during the
years 2003, 2002 and 2001 were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share
because their effect would have been antl‘ dilutive.

2.

Distributions

With the exception of the fourth quarter;

distributions to shareholders. These distrib
of Directors based on the Company's ope

2001, the Company has paid regular quarterly cash
u‘tlons are determined quarterly by the Company's Board
ra‘tmg results, economic conditions, capital expenditure

s REIT annual distribution requirements, and leverage
e of credit (the "Line of Credit").

requirements, the Internal Revenue Code!
restrictions imposed by the Company's line

Minority Interests

i
Minority interests in Partnership represen%s the limited partners' proportionate share of the equity
of the Partnership. Income is allocated to minority interests based on weighted average percentage

ownership each fiscal guarter.

income Taxes

The Company has elected to be treated as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code. Prior to
January 1, 2001, the Company, as a REIT nwas not subject to federal income taxes. Under the Tax
Relief Extension Act of 1889 that became eﬁ‘ectlve January 1, 2001, the Company ieases the Hotels
to wholly-owned TRSs that are subject o federal and state income taxes. The Company accounts
for income taxes in accordance with the‘ provisions of SFAS No. 108, "Accounting for income
Taxes." Under SFAS No. 108, the Company uses the asset and liability method under which
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recbgmzed for the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the financial statemenit carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases. |

\

Earnings and profits, which will de‘termlne the taxabiiity of distributions to shareholders, will differ
from net income reporied for financial reportmg purposes primarily due to the differences for federal
income tax purposes in the estimated usfeful lives and methods used toc compuie depreciation.
Distributions made to shareholders in 2003, 2002 and 2001 are considered to be approximately 1%,
3% and 21% return of capital, respec‘tiveI}L/, for federal income tax purposes.

In the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company recorded a valuation allowance of $16.8 miilion against
its deferred tax asset, in accordance with C[FAS No. 109, as realization of such asset in future years
is uncertain.
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EQUITY INNS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Stock Based Compensation

At December 31, 2003, the Company has two stock-based employee and director compensation
plans, which are described more fully in Note 13. Prior to December 31, 2002, the Company
accounted for these plans under the recognition and measurement provisions of APB No. 25,
"Accounting for Stock issued to Employees,” and related interpretations. in December of 2002, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued SFAS No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation -- Transition and Disclosure." SFAS No. 148 amends SFAS No. 123,
"Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to provide alternative methods of transition for a
voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation. The Company elected to adopt the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 under
the prospective method as defined in SFAS No. 148 on January 1, 2003. Under the prospective
method, the Company will apply the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation prospectively to all awards granted, modified or settled beginning January
1, 2003. There were no grants, modifications or settlements of options to purchase shares of the
Company's common stock made during the year ended December 31, 2003. No stock-based
employee compensation cost is reflected in net income as all options granted prior to December 31,
2002 had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date
of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the
Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to stock-based
employee compensation (in thousands, except per share amounts).

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Net income (loss) applicable to
common shareholders, as reported $(22,920) $ (67) $3,633
Less:
Total stock based employee
compensation expense determined
under fair value based method for
all awards 2 i7 25
Pro forma net income (loss) $(22,922) $(84) 3,608
Earnings per share (basic and diluted):
As reported $ (056) 0.00 0.10
Pro forma o $ (0.56) 0.00 0.10

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains cash balances with financial institutions with high ratings. The Company
has not experienced any losses with respect to bank balances in excess of government-provided
insurance.
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E@UUTY INNS, INC.
NOTES TO C@NS@LDIATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principies
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reperting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. |

Fair Value of Financiai Instruments

The Company's financial instruments mclude cash and cash equivalents, commercial mortgage
bonds, line of credit borrowings, moﬁgage borrowings and interest rate swap contracts. The
carrying values of the Company's commercuai mortgage bonds and morigage berrowings were
estimated using discounted cash flow analysm based on the Company's incremental borrowing rate
at December 31, 2003 and 2002 for simil ar types of borrowing arrangements and the carrying value
of such instruments are estimated to be Eogiow fair value by approximately $186.4 million and $20.0
million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Company's Line of Credit borrowings
bear interest at variable rates and iherefore cost approximates market value. The Company's
interest rate swap contracts are carried a‘t fair value in the financial statements. The fair value of
the interest rate swaps is estimated using quotes from the market makers of these instruments and
represents the estimated amount the Company would expect to pay to terminate the agreements.
|
The Company identifies its operating segmenis based on business aclivities and management
responsibility. The Company operates in a single business segment of providing asset

management to hotel properties that it ov\“ns.

Segment Reporting

3. Investment in_Hotel Properties

|
Hotel properties consist of the following at December 31 (in thousands):

; 2003 2002
Land | $ 99,038 $103,408
Buildings and improvemenis ; 695,581 722,808
Furniture and equipment ; 114,328 115,148
Construction in progress ; 3,998 5.058

| 913,845 946,422
Less accumulated depreciation ! (232.3867) (206.276)

’ $681.478 $740.146

In July 1998, the Company acquired an uf’ndeveloped parcel of land in Salt Lake City, Utah for the
e fourth quarter of 2001, the Company made the decision

purpose of constructing a hotel. During th
to postpone the project and evaluate the opportunities related to the undeveloped land. The
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EQUITY INNS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Investment in Hotel Properties. Continued

Company recorded an impairment charge of $550,000 to write the iand down to its estimated net
realizable value at December 31, 2001. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the parce!l of land was
included in construction in progress in the amount of $2.2 million.

4. Notes Receivable

Notes receivable consist of the following at December 31 (in thousands):

2003 2002
Hudson Hotels Properties Corporation, a
subsidiary of Hudson Hotels Corporation $ $2,654
HM-NM, Inc. 3,682
Officers of the Company 1,335 1,335
4,917 3,989
Provision for doubtful accounts 2.854)
4917 $1.335

The note with Hudson Hotels Properties Corporation ("Hudson") is collateralized by 666,667 shares
of Hudson Hotels Corporation's common stock. Based on its evaluation of the creditworthiness of
Hudson, the Company fully reserved this note effective December 31, 2001. On January 24, 2003,
Hudson Hotels Corporation filed a voluntary petition for relief under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy
Code in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Western District of New York. Simultaneously, its
subsidiary, Hudson Hotels Properties Corporation, filed a companion petition for relief under Chapter
11 in the same court. The Company does not believe that the unsecured creditors or shareholders
of Hudson will receive any remuneration through the bankrupicy proceedings and wrote off the
Hudson Note during 2003.

On November 25, 2003, the Company sold its AmeriSuites hotel in Jacksonville, Florida to HM-NM,
Inc. for a purchase price of approximately $6.0 million, $4.0 million of which was in the form of a 15-
month note bearing interest at 7.75% per annum. The note is secured by the land, building and
furniture and fixtures of the AmeriSuites hotel located at 8277 Western Way Circle, Jacksonville,
Florida. The note is offset by the gain on the sale of approximately $418,000, for which recognition
was deferred until the receipt of the full amount of the note which is due February 25, 2005.

At various times from January 1998 to July 2002, the Company has advanced loans to its executive
officers for income taxes relating to annual bonuses taken in shares of the Company's common
stock and income taxes related to the taxable value of vested restricted stock. At December 31,
2003, the aggregate amount of notes receivable from officers of the Company is approximately $1.3
million. All notes are collateralized by the applicable shares of common stock held by each officer
and are non-interest bearing. These notes are due and payable on the earlier of July 23, 2004 or
30 days after the date of termination of any officer's employment with the Company. The Company
no longer provides loans to officers.
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E@iﬂnw INNS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continzed)

l

5. Debt

The following details the Company's deib‘t outstanding at December 31, 2003 and 2002 (in
thousands):

Collateral Net Book
Principal Balance \ Interest # of Value at
12/31/03 12/31/02 | Rate Maturity Hotels 12/31/03
Commercial Mortgage Bonds ’
Class A $ 4081 § 8464 | 6.83% Fixed Nov 2006
Class B 50,600 50,600 | 7.37% Fixed Dec 2015
Class C 10.000 10,000 | 7.58% Fixed Feb 2017
64,661 69,064 | 20 $105,705
Line of Credit 50,000 85,900 LIBORplus Variable June 2006 26 228,161
Percentage
Mortgage 91,009 92,584 : 8.37% Fixed July 2009 19 156,417
Mortgage 66,891 67,890 ! 8.25% Fixed Nov 2010 16 101,419
Mortgage 34,612 35100 ¢ 825% Fixed Nov 2010 8 56,133
Mortgage 10,750 LIBOR plus
285 pts. Variable August 2008 1 15,459
Mortgage 2,912 2996  6.00% Fixed May 2008 1 6,691
Mortgage 5,431 5,662 10.00% Fixed Sept 2005 1 10,977
Mortgage 3,508 3685 ¢ 6.37% Fixed Nov 2018 1 7,880
$329,774 $362.881 1 $688,842

The Company's weighted average interest rate for 2003 a'hd 2002 was 7.92% and 8.03%, respectively.

The Company entered intc a collaterahzed Line of Credit in June 2003 for $110 million, subject to
certain restrictions. The Line of Credit bears interest at LIBOR plus 2.25% {0 3.0% per annum as
determined by the quarterly leverage test of Equity Inns, and the facility matures in June 2006. At
December 31, 2003, the interest rate on the Line of Credit was LIBOR (1.17% at December 31,
2003) plus 2. 75% Fees ranging from 45% to .60% per annum, as determined by the Companys
ratio of total indebtedness to EBITDA, are pald quarterly on the unused portion of the Line of Credit.
The Line of Credit maintains certain restrlctlons regarding capitai expenditures and other quarterly
financial covenants, including a test for free cash flow for dividend payouts, a fixed charge test and

a leverage test, among other covenants. A‘t December 31, 2003, the Company was in compliance
with all covenants required by the Line of Creom

All of the Company's debt is secured by tme Hotels. The debt has maturity dates that range from
September 2005 to February 2017 with certain debt requiring annual principal payments and certain
debt representing term maturities. The ;majority of the Company's debt requires prepayment
penalties if paid off prior to maturity.

Certain of the Company's loan agreemenis|require a quarierly deposit into separate room renovation
accounts for the amount by which 4% of revenues at the Hotels exceeds the amount expended by
the Company during the year for replacement of furniture, fixtures and equipment and capital
improvements for the hotels. For the year ended December 31, 2003, actuai expenditures, in
aggregate, exceeded the amounts required.
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5. Debt, Continued

Future scheduled principal payments of debt obligations at December 31, 2003 are as follows (in
thousands):

Year Amount
2004 $ 6,074
2005 11,702
2006 57,154
2007 9,057
2008 21,423
Thereafter 224 364

$328.774

6. Interest Raie Swap Coniracts

On March 20, 2003, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a financial
institution on a notional amount of $25 miliion. The agreement became effective in November 2003
and expires in November 2008. The agreement effectively fixes the interest rate on the first $25
million of floating rate debt outstanding under the Line of Credit at a rate of 3.875% per annum plus
the interest rate spread on the Line of Credit, thus reducing exposure to interest rate fluctuations.
The notional amount does not represent amounts exchanged by the parties, and thus is not a
measure of exposure to the Company. The differences to be paid or received by the Company
under the interest rate swap agreement are recognized as an adjustment to interest expense. The
agreement is with a major financial institution, which is expected to fully perform under the terms of
the agreement.

On March 20, 2003, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a financial
institution on a notional amount of $25 million. The agreement became effective in November 2003
and expires in November 2006. The agreement effectively fixes the interests rate on the second
$25 million of floating rate debt outstanding under the Line of Credit at a rate of 3.22% per annum
plus the interest rate spread on the Line of Credii, thus reducing exposure to interest rate
fluctuations. The notional amount does not represent amounts exchanged by the parties, and thus
is not a measure of exposure to the Company. The differences to be paid or received by the
Company under the interest rate swap agreement are recognized as an adjustment to interest
expense. The agreement is with a major financial institution, which is expected to fully perform
under the terms of the agreement.

7. Income Taxas

In years ending before January 1, 2001, the Company was not subject to federal and state income
tax because of its RE!T status. Under the provisions of the Tax Relief Extension Act of 1999 that
became effective January 1, 2001, the Company began leasing hotels to its TRSs which are subject
to federal and state income taxes.
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7. Income Taxes, Continued

The use of TRSs, however, is subject to cértaiﬂ restrictions, including the following:

* no more than 20% of the REIT's assets may consist of securities of its TRSs;

o the tax deductibility of interest pald or accrued by a TRS to its affiliated REIT is limited; and

> a 100% excise tax is imposed on non-arm's length transactions between a TRS and its

affiliated REIT or the RE[T's tenants
JI

In order to qualify for REIT status under ‘the Internal Revenue Code, the Company must meet
several requirements. One of these requuremems is that the Company must distribuie at least 80%
of its taxable income in the form of a dnvudend to its shareholders. Generally, a REIT is not subject
to federal taxes on the income it di strnbuﬁels currently to its shareholders. [f the Company fails to
meet the REIT qualification tests, it will be subject {o federal (including any alternative minimum tax)
and state income tax and may not qualify as a REIT for subsequent taxable years. Management
infends for the Company to continue to meet aii of the REIT requirements.

The components of income tax expense (benefit) at December 31 are as foliows (in thousands):

2003 2002 2001
Deferred: '
Federal ! $(6,274) $(5,659) $(3,089)
State (738) (686) (383)
Valuation allowance | 16,789

Deferred income tax expense

(benefit), net ; 9777  §(6.325) $(3.452)

!

The deferred income tax expense (benefit) “and reiated deferred tax asset was historically caiculated
using a statutory tax rate of 38% applied to t the losses of the TRSs. At year-end 2003, the Company
determined that a valuation allowance was necessary for the entire deferred income tax asset due
to the continued softness in the lodging industry and the uncertainty associated with its future
recovery. Accordingly, the Company recorded an approximate $16.8 miliion valuation allowance
($16.2 millicn after minority interests cormsuderat jon) associated with its deferred income tax asset.
Additionally, the Company wili dlscon‘tlnue recording a deferred income tax benefit for 2004. The
Company's deferred tax asset is comprised of net operating loss carryforwards which will expire in
years beginning after 2021. 3!

|

A recongciliation of the Company's statutor#y tax rate to its effective tax rate is as follows:

2003 2002 2001
Statutory U.S. federal income tax fate 35% 35% 35%
State income tax rate (net of federal benefit) 3% 3% 3%
Non-taxable REIT income : (217%) (4,588%) (89%)
Valuation allowance i 428%

Effective income tax rate | 250% {4.550%) (51%)

44




EQUITY INNS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. income Taxes, Continued

The following table reconciles GAAP net income and REIT taxable income for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 (in thousands):

2003 2002 2001
GAAP net income $(13,689) $ 6,464 $10,164
Plus GAAP net loss on taxable subsidiaries
included above 27 459 10,020 5635
GAAP net income from REIT operations 13,770 16,484 15,799
Book/tax differences on depreciation and
amortization 10,535 10,212 8,269
Book/tax differences on gains/losses from
capital transactions 4,607 208 874
Write-off of notes receivable (1,898) (630) 2,560
Other book/tax differences, net 983 314 _(399)
Taxable income subject to distribution
requirement $ 27997 $26.588 $27.108

The tax effect of the temporary difference that gives rise to our deferred tax asset at December 31,
2003 and 2002 is as foliows (in thousands):

2003 2002
Net operating loss carryforwards - TRSs $16,789 $9,777
Less valuation allowance (16.789)
Deferred income tax asset, net 3 0 8777

8. Discontinued Operations

In 2002, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets." SFAS No. 144 established criteria beyond that previously specified
in SFAS No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets
to be Disposed of," to determine when a long-lived asset is classified as held for sale, and it
provides a single accounting model for the disposal of long-lived assets. Due to the adoption of
SFAS No. 144, the Company now reports as discontinued operations any assets held for sale (as
defined by SFAS No. 144), and assets sold in the current period. All results of these discontinued
operations, less applicable income taxes, are included in a separate component of income on the
consolidated statement of operations under the heading, "Income (loss) from discontinued
operations." This change has resulted in certain reclassifications of the previously reported 2002
and 2001 statements of operations.

In 2003, the Company sold four hotels (Hampton Inn in Ft. Worth, Texas; Hampton Inn & Suites
in Bartlett, Tennessee; Holiday Inn Express in Wilkesboro, North Carolina; and AmeriSuites in
Jacksonville, Florida) for an aggregate price of $20.1 million, resulting in a gain on the sales of
approximately $1.6 million, net of impairment charges previously recorded. Approximately $418,000
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8. Discontinued Operatﬁons#ConﬁnueH

‘,
of this gain has been deferred by the Company The sales prices were paid in cash, except for the
Jacksonville hotel, $4.0 million of which Was in the form of a 15-month note bearmg interest at
7.75% per annum. The proceeds were utlhzed to pay down our long-term debt. The operations of
these hotels, plus the operations of three other hotels classified as held for sale as of December 31,
2003 are included in the accompanying consohdated statements of operations under the heading
"income (loss) for discontinued operahons The components of income (loss) from discontinued
operations for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 are shown below (in

thousands):
2003 2002 2001
Revenue: ‘
Room Revenue ; $7,070 $11,280 $2,328
Other operating departments 4 268 478 462
Percentage lease revenue 714
Operating costs: :
Property operating costs ‘ (4,278) (7,080) (6,347)
Other operating departments ; (261) (532) (483)
Property taxes and insurance | (527) (859) (767)
Depreciation i (897) (2,363) (2,254)
Amortization of franchise fees { (7) (15) (15)
interest ‘ (708) (708) (708)
Income tax benefit § 494 473
Income (loss) from operations of
discontinued operations ! (38) 897 405
Gain on sale of hotel properties | 1,248 83
Loss on impairment of hotels held for sale (4,605)
‘,
Income (loss) from discontinued |

operations $(3.395) $ 697 $ 488

9. Commitments and Contingencies

All of the Hotels are operated under franchi§e agreements and are iicensed as Hampton [nn hotels
(47), AmeriSuites hotels (18), Residence Inh hotels (11), Homewood Suites hotels (8), Holiday inn
hotels (4), Comfort inn hotels (3) and Courtyard by Marrioit (1). The TRS Lessees hold the
franchise licenses for the Hotels. The franchise agreements require the payment of fees based on

a percentage of hotel room revenue.

]

The Company's management agreements vange in terms from 1 to 10 years. The management fees
consist of a base fee ranging from 1.5% to w2 5% of hotel revenues and an incentive fee consisting
of a percentage of gross operating proﬁ‘ts in excess of budget, as defined by the management
agreements. Base management fees of approxnmafeiy $3.7 million, $4.0 million and $2.7 million
in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and incentive managemenet fees of approximately $831,000,
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9. Commitments and Contingencies. Continued

$637,000 and $578,000 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, were earned by the management
companies and are included in hotel operating expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations. As & part of the minimum net operating income guarantee provided by
Prime's subsidiaries for the Company's AmeriSuites hotels, the Company received $4.7 million in
2003 and $3.6 million in 2002, which is recorded as a reduction in base management fees.

Under the percentage leases (the "Percentage Leases"), the Partnership is obligated to pay the
costs of real estate and personal property taxes and to maintain underground utilities and structural
elements of the Hotels. in addition, the Percentage Leases obligate the Partnership to fund the cost
of periodic repair, replacement and refurbishment of furniture, fixtures and equipment in the Hotels.
The Company also may be required by franchisors to fund certain capital improvements to hotel
properties, which are funded from borrowings, working capital, or the room renovation account (see
Note 5). Capital improvements of approximately $13.3 million, $8.9 million and $22.2 million in
2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively, were made to the Hotels.

The Company maintains agreements with certain senior officers that provide for severance
payments in the event of a change in control of Equity inns. At December 31, 2003, the maximum
amount of compensation that would be payable, under all agreements if a change of control
occurred, would be approximately $6.2 million.

The Company is involved in various legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business.
Management does not believe that any of the pending actions will have 2 material adverse effect
on the Company's business, financial condition or results of operations.

The Company has commitments under operating land leases through December 31, 2062, at nine
hotel properties for payments as follows: 2004 -- $809,136; 2005 -- $832,738; 2006 -- $753,834;
2007 -- $628,262; 2008 -- $607,363; thereafter -- $3.3 million. Rental expense under such leases
was approximately $845,000, $1.3 million and $1.3 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and
is included in property taxes, rental expense and insurance in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.

10. Related Party Transactions

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company formed a joint venture (the "Venture") with one of its
furniture and equipment contractors for the purpose of engaging in the sale of furniture and
equipment to third parties. The Company has a 45% interest, and two of its executive officers,
collectively, have a 5% interest in the Venture. The Company accounts for the Venture under the
equity method of accounting. The Company will provide ceriain management services for the
Venture for a fee of $240,000 in 2004. The Company provided similar services to its joint venture
partner in 2003, 2002 and 2001 and was compensated $240,000, $550,000 and $1.1 million,
respectively, for such services which are included in other revenue in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations. The Company acquired furniture and equipment and related
services from its joint venture partner for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 of
approximately $10.0 million, $5.8 million and $12.0 million, respectively.

The Company has commitments under a lease with an affiliate of Phillip H. McNeill, Sr., the
Company's Chairman of the Board, for the Company's corporate office space through December
2008 at monthly payments of approximately $13,200.
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During 2003, the Company has used an airplane that is majority owned by McNeill & Associates,
Lid. Phillip H. McNeill, Sr., the Company's Chairman of the Board, owns 100% of McNeill &
Associates, Ltd. During 2003, the Company paid McNeill & Associates, Ltd. approximately $42,000
in conjunction with the use of this airplane.

11. Supplemental Disclosure of Non-ca‘ﬂsh Operating, Investing and Financing Activities
F

During 2003, the Company soid its AmeraSuuteS hotel in Jacksonville, Florida to HM-NM, Inc. for a
purchase price cf approximately $6.0 mvHvon $4.0 million of which was in the form of a 15-month
note. The $4.0 million note and the relatecﬂ reduction of investment in hotel properties, net have
been appropriately excluded from the accompanymg consolidated statement of cash flows.

In 2003, the Company issued 19,081 shares of common stock valued at $5.88 per share to its
officers in lieu of cash to satisfy bonus compensatnon accrued at December 31, 2002; 51,521 Units
of limited partnership interest in the Parmershlp ("Units") were exchanged for 51,521 shares of
common stock by certain limited partners; 14,586 shares of common stock at prices ranging from
$5.82 to $9.25 per share were issued to mcﬂependent directors of the Company in lieu of cash as
directors' compensation. ;

In 2002, the Company issued 51,704 shares of common stock valued at $6.62 per share o its
officers in lieu of cash to satisfy bonus corqpensaﬂon accrued at December 31, 2001; 2,568 Units
were exchanged for 2,568 shares of common stock by certain limited partners; 2,160 unvested,
restricted shares of common stock were forfelted by an officer of the Company; 11,807 shares of
common stock at prices ranging from $5. 30|to $8.19 per share were issued to independent directors
of the Company in lieu of cash as directors' compensation.

|
in 2002, the Company accrued a $4.0 million addition to the purchase price of cne of its hotel
properties in accordance with the provnsuons of the purchase agreement. These funds were paid
to the seller in 2003. i

In 2002, the Company transferred approxirﬁa‘tely $712,000 of deferred gain related to a transacticn

with Hudson to its provision for doubtful accounts on its note receivable from Hudson (see Note 4).
\

12. Capital Stock

The Board of Directors is authorized to pkovnde for the issuance of up to 10.0 million shares of
preferred stock in one or more series, to establlsh the number of shares in each series and {o fix
the designation, powers, preferences, and rights of each such series and the qualifications,
limitations or restriction thereof. 1

On August 11, 2003, the Company redeémecﬂ all of its outstanding 8.5% Series A Cumulative
Preferred Stock at a redemption price of $%5 plus accrued dividends. The cost of the redemption
of the 8.5% Series A Cumulative Preferred Stock was approximately $68.8 million.
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In August 2003, the Company completed its offering of 8.75% Series B Cumuiative Preferred Stock,
selling 3,162,500 shares, including 162,500 shares issued upon exercise of the underwriters over-
allotment option. The offering price was $25 per share, resulting in gross proceeds of approximately
$79.1 million. The Company received approximately $76.4 million after the underwriters' discount
and offering expenses were paid. in October 2003, the Company sold 287,500 shares of Series
B preferred stock to institutional investors. The offering price was $25.00 per share, resulting in
gross proceeds of approximately $7.2 million. The Series B preferred stock may be redeemed for
$25 per share at any time after August 11, 2008 at the Company's election.

In October 2003, the Company sold 2.0 million shares of common stock, $.01 par value to
institutional investors. The net offering price to the Company was $7.55 per share, resulting in
proceeds of approximately $15.1 million.

The outstanding Units are redeemable at the option of the holder for a like number of shares of
common stock, or at the option of the Company, the cash equivalent thereof. Total Units
outstanding at December 31, 2003 and 2002 were approximately 1.1 million and 1.2 million,
respectively.

13. Stock Based Compensation Plans

The Company is authorized, under the 1994 Stock Incentive Plan (the "1994 Plan") and the
Directors' Compensation Plan (the "Directors Pian") (referred to collectively as the "Plans”), to issue
a total of 4.1 million shares of common stock to directors, officers and key employees of the
Company in the form of stock options, restricted stock, or performance stock. Under the 1294 Plan,
the total shares available for grant is 4.0 miillion, of which not more than 2.0 million shares may be
grants of restricted stock. Under the Directors Plan, the total shares available for grants of options
is 100,000. Directors may also elect to receive their meeting and retainer fees in the form of
common stock.
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Stock Options

All options to officers, directors and key employees have eight to ten year coniractual terms and
generally vest ratably over five years. A s;ummary of the Company's stock opticns for the years
ended December 2003, 2002 and 2001 ispresented below:

¢
|

2003 | 2002 2001
Wei‘ghted Weighted Weighted
# of Shares Avg rage # of Shares Average # of Shares  Average
of Underlying Exercnse of Underlying Exercise of Underlying Exercise
Options P‘rlce Options Price Options Price
Outstanding at beginning ;
of year 153,000 $12.53 590,000 $12.54 586,000 $12.56
Granted ' 4,000 $7.77 4,000 $ 9.32
Expirations i (441,000) $12.50
Exercised
Forfeited .
Outstanding at end of year 153,000 $“‘2.53 153,000 $12.53 590,000 $12.54
Exercisable at end of year 152,000 $1:2.55 148,000 $12.60 561,000 $12.54
|
\
Options OutstandlnL Options Exercisable
We|ghted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average
# Outstanding Remammg Exercise # Exercisable Remaining Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices at 12/31/03 ife Price at 12/31/03 Life Price
$6.88 -- $9.63 26,000 16.31 $8.66 25,000 6.34 $8.66
$11.25-- $13.69 127,000 12.83 $13.32 127,000 2.83 $13.32
:
Prior to January 1, 2003, the Company accounted for these plans under the recogni‘tion and

measurement provisions of ABP No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issues to Employees," and refated
interpretations. In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation -- Transition and Dlsclosure " SFAS No. 148 amends SFAS No. 123, "Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation," to prowde alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change
to the fair value based method of accoﬂwntmg for stock-based employee compensation. The
Company elected to adopt the recogm‘non provisions of SFAS No. 123 under the prospective
method as defined in SFAS No. 148 on “January 1, 2003. Under the prospective method, the
Company will apply the fair value based me‘thod of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation prospectively to all awards granteol modified or setiled beginning January 1, 2003.
There were no grants, modification or se‘ttl}ements of options to purchase shares of the Company's
common stock made during the year ended December 31, 2003. No stock-based employee
compensation cost is reflected in net i mcome as ali options granted pricr to December 31, 2002 had
an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.
For the purposes of disclosures required Ey SFAS No. 123, the fair value of each option granted
during 2002 and 2001 is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model with the following assumptions: (‘i) dividend of $0.53 per share for 2002 and dividend
),

i
}
!‘I
|
I

50




EQUITY INNS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

13. Stock Based Compensation Plans, Continued

of $.75 per share for 2001; (2) expected volatility of .25 for 2002, and .24 for 2001; (3) a risk-free
interest rate of 4.5% for 2002 and 5.0% for 2001; and (4) expected life of six years for 2002 and
2001.

Assuming that compensation cost for the Company's 2003, 2002 and 2001 grants for stock-based
compensation plans had been determined consistent with SFAS No. 123, the Company's pro forma
net income, and net income per common share for 2003, 2002 and 2001 would have decreased
less than 1%.

The effects of applying SFAS No. 123 in this pro forma disclosure are not indicative of the future
effect, since additional SFAS No. 123 awards in future years are anticipated.

Restricted Stock

A summary of the status of the Company's restricted stock grants made under the Plans to officers
and directors at December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 and the changes during the years are
presented below

2003 2002 2001
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Fair Market Fair Market Fair Market
Value at Value at Value at
# of Shares Grant # of Shares Grant # of Shares Grant
Outstanding at beginning of year 414,250 $10.43 418,120 $10.40 386,300 $10.75
Granted:
With 5 year pro rata vesting 21,820 $ 6.19
With 4 year pro rata vesting
With 3 year pro rata vesting : 10,000 $ 6.18
Total granted 31,820 $ 6.19
Vested to former employee (1,440) $ 6.75
Forfeited (2,160} $8675
Outstanding at end of year 414,520 $10.43 414,520 $10.43 418,120 $10.40
Vested at end of year 361,814 $10.85 302,489 $11.11 218,086 $11.56
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[n November 2002, the FASB issued | n‘teré)retataon No. 45 ("FIN 45"), "Guarantor's Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, !,nC uding Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,"
to clarify accounting and disclosure requwemenfcs relating to a guarantor's issuance of certain types
of guarantees. FIN 45 requires entities to disclose additional information about certain guarantees,
or groups of similar guarantees, even if the likelihood of the guarantor's having to make any
payments under the guarantee is remote. |l aiso clarifies that 2 guarantor is required to recognize,
at the inception of a guaraniee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the
guarantee. As required by FIN 45, on January 1, 2003, we adopted the initial recognition and
measurement provisions on a prospectlve('basus for guarantees issued or meodified after December
31, 2002. The adoption of the recognition/ measurement provisions did not have any impact on the
Company's financial statements. }’

In January 2003, the FASB issued | nterbretataon No. 48 ("FIN 48"), "Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities -- an interpretation of ARB(NO 51," to improve financial reporting of special purpose
and other entities. In accordance with the m‘tevpretation business enterprises that represent the
primary beneficiary of another entity by retépmmg a controlling financiai interest in that entity's assets,
liabilities and resulis of operating ac‘tivities{:must consolidate the entity in their financial statements.
Prior to the issuance of FIN 48, consolidation generally occurred when an enterprise controlled
another entity through voting interests. Certam VIEs that are qualifying special purpose entities
("QSPEs") subject to the reporting requtremen‘ts of SFAS No. 140, "Accoun‘tmg for Transfer and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities,” will not be required to be
consolidated under the provisions of FIN 48. The consoiidation provisions of FIN 46 apply o all

VIEs created or entered into after January%3‘i, 2003. OCriginally, the provisions of FIN 46 applied to
ali pre-existing VIEs in the first reporting period beginning after June 15, 2003. In December 2003,
the FASB issued Interpretaticn No. 46 -- revised 2003 (FIN 48R). This deferred the effective date
of the interpretation untii the first re[oomng periocd ending after December 15, 2003 for special
purpose entities and until the first repomng pericd ending after March 15, 2004 for all other entities.
if applicable transition rules aliow the resﬁatemen& of financial statements or prospective application
with a cumuiative effect adjustment. In addltuon FIN 46 expands the disclesure requirements for
the beneficiary of a significant or a majorlty of the variable interests to provide information regarding
the nature, purpose and financial characte\rlstlcs of the entities. The Company does not believe that
the adoption of FIN 46 will have a ma‘terlal adverse impact on its financial statements or financial

condition. : !

in April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No 148, "Amendment of Statement No. 133 on Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities." SFAS No. 149 amends SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Actlwtles" to provide clarification on the financial accounting
and reporting for derivative instruments ,and hedging activities and requires simifar accounting
treatment for contracts with comparable characteristics. The adoption of SFAS Ne. 149, effective
primarily for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003 and for hedging relationships
designated after June 30, 2003, had no impact on the Company's financial statements.
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In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, "Accounting for Certain Financial instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity." SFAS No. 150 addresses financial accounting and
reporting for certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. This
statements requires that an issuer classify a financial instrument that is within its scope as a liability
(or an asset in some circumstances) because that financial instrument embodies an obligation of
the issuer. As required by SFAS No. 150, the Company adopted this new accounting standard
effective July 1, 2003. The adoption of SFAS No. 150 did not have any impact on the Company's
financial statements.

15. Subseguent Events

In late 2003 and early 2004, the Company announced the purchase of nine hotels from the
McKibbon Hotel Group. All of these transactions are expected to close by the end of May 2004,
The total purchase price for the nine hotels is approximately $70 million, including the assumption
of approximately $37 million in secured debt, and the Company expects to fund these acquisitions
primarily through its Line of Credit and the additional issuance of equity securities. The average age
of these nine hotels is seven years.

On January 26, 2004, the Company completed the acquisition of one of the above-mentioned
hotels, a 93-room Marriott Courtyard hotel located in Tallahassee, Fiorida, for approximately $S.8
million in cash.

During January 2004, the Company soid two hotels (Hampton Inn, Jacksonville, Florida and
Hampton Inn, Sarasota, Florida) to third parties for an aggregate sales price of approximately $8.0
million. The sales prices were paid in cash, and the proceeds were primarily utilized to pay down
the Company's secured long-term debt and to pay related prepayment penalties of approximately
$400,000. As a condition to the sale of the Jacksonville Hampton inn, the Company agreed to
increase its note receivable from HM-NM, inc. by $800,000, and applied this amount toward the
purchase price of the Jacksonville Hampton Inn. The increased amount of the note is due and
payable in February 2005, bears interest at 7.75% per annum, and is secured by the land, building,
furniture and fixtures of the AmeriSuites hotel (sold to the same buyer in November 2003) located
at 8277 Western Way Circle, Jacksonville, Florida.

On January 21, 2004, the Company amended its Line of Credit to provide for more flexibility
regarding its financial covenants through June 2006. The Company incurred an amendment fee
of approximately $37,000.
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(in thousands)
i

;
.! Valuation
: Aliowance Allowance for
,‘ for Doubtful Deferred Income
» Accounts (1) Tax Asset
Balance January 1, 2001 $ $
Charged to costs and expenses : 2,717
Charged to other amounts | 712
Deductions |
Balance December 31, 2001 | 3,429
Charged to costs and expenses ‘ 25
Charges to other accounts ’
Deductions ‘ 850
Balance December 31, 2002 | $2,804
Charged to costs and expenses 50 $16,789
Deduction (2,654)
Balance December 31, 2003 ? 200 16,789
(1) Allowance for doubtful accounts incIL;des combined allowances for both accounts receivable
and notes receivable. “
|
;
»
|
I
,
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Notes to Schedule ili -- Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation.

Collateral for the CMBS Mortgage Bonds with a current balance of $64,661

Collateral for the $110 million Line of Credit with a current balance of $50,000

Collateral for the GMAC mortgages due July 2009 with a current balance of $91,009
Collateral for the GECC mortgages due November 2010 with a current balance of $66,891
Collateral for the GMAC mortgages due November 2010 with a current balance of $34,612
Collaterai for various mortgage notes due from September 2005 to November 2016 with
combined balances of $22,601

7. These hotels are classified as "heid for sale" at December 31, 2003

OO hWN =

2003 2002 2001
Cost of land, buildings and improvements:
Balance at beginning of year $946,422 $918,819 $906,996
Depreciation for the period 13,342 29,210 12,891
Disposals (24,407) (1,607) (1,168)
Impairments (4,373)
Balance at end of year $930.984 $946 422 $918.819
Accumulated depreciation on land,
buildings and improvements:
Balance at beginning of year $206,276 $166,929 $134,585
Depreciation for the period 39,371 40,954 32,344
Disposals (6,312) (1,607)

Balance at end of year $239.335 $206.276 $166,929




ITEMS. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FI NANCUAL DISCLOSURE

During the fiscal year ended December 31 42003 and through the date of this report, there has been
no change in the Company's mdependem accountants, nor have any disagreements with such
accountants or reporiable events occurred.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

l

Pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) under the Secun‘mes Exchange Act of 1934, our Company carried out
an evaluation, with the participation of our Companys management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the eﬁ‘ectiveness of our Company's disclosure centrols and
procedures {as defined under Rule 13a-15 (e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of the
end of the period covered by this report. Baseo] upon that evaluation, cur Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that'our Company's disclosure controls and procedures are
effective in timely alerting them to ma‘terlal information relating to our Company (including our
consolidated subsidiaries) required to be mcluded in our periodic SEC filings. There has been no
change in our Company's internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended
December 31, 2003 that has materiaily aﬁ‘ected or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our
Company's internal control over flnancmgl reporting.

}‘; PART Iil

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND [EXECUTH\‘{[E OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information required by this item is incorpo’rated by reference from the section entitled "The Election
of Directors" and "Our Board of Directors" in the Proxy Statement as to the Company's directors and
certain of our executive officers. See also| ﬂtem 1 -- "Business-Executive Officers of the Company"
for information regarding our remaining executive officers and ltem | -- "Business-Available
Information” for information regarding ourif Code of Ethics.

Information required by this item is mcorpo!rated by reference from the section entitled "Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership and Reporiing Comphance in the Proxy Statement as to Section 18 reporting
compliance. ﬂ

Our Board of Directors has determined ‘tnat it presently has no "audit committee financial expert”
(as that term is defined in the rules promulgaﬁed by the Securities and Exchange Commission
pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002) serving on the Audit Committee. We are currently
seeking a board member that qualifies as our Audit Committes financial expert, as defined, and we
plan to have this board seat and AudﬂJCommmee member placed by the time of our annual
shareholders meeting on May 13, 2004. 'Our Board of Directors has determined that each of the
members of our Audit Committee is financially literate and has accounting or related financial

management expertise, as required by thé New York Stock Exchange as interpreted by our Board

of Directors.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required by this item is incorp‘orateoﬁ by reference from the section entitied "Executive
Compensation” in the Proxy Statement. The matters labeled "Performance Graph" contained in the
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Proxy Statement shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSH|P OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the sections entitied "Ownership
of Our Common Stock" and "Executive Compensation -- Equity Compensation Plan” in the Proxy
Statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the section entitled "Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions" in the Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the sectlon entitled "Relationship
with Independent Public Accountants" in the Proxy Statement.

ITEM 15, EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

(a) Einancial Statements:

The following financial statements and financial statement schedules are located in this report on
the pages indicated:

Equity inns, Inc. Page
Report of Independent Auditors 27
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2003 and 2002 28
Consolidated Statemenis of Operations for the years ended

December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 29
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the

years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 30
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the

years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 31
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended

December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 33
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 34
Schedule il -- Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years

ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 54
Schedule (il - Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation

as of December 31, 2003 55

All other schedules to the consolidated financial statements required by Article 7 of Regulation S-X
are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable and therefore have been emitted
from this report.




(b)

Reports on Form 8-K: ;

Two (2) reports on Form 8-K were filed bylthe Company with the SEC during the fourth guarter of
2003: (1) on October 10, 2003 under ltems 5 and 7 to report the Company's sale to Cohen & Steers
Capital Management, Inc., acting on !behaif of certain of its investment advisory clients, of 287,500
shares of the Companys 8.75% Series B Cumuiative Preferred Stock, $.01 par value per share
(Liquidation Preference $25 per share), ar‘ﬁd 2.0 million shares of the Company's Common Stock,
$.01 par value per share, and {2) on November 6, 2003 under ltems 7 and 12 to file the press
release relating to the Company's results of operations and financial condition for the third quarter

of 2003. ;

() Exhibits:

Exhibit

Number  Description

3.1(a) -- Second Amended and Resta‘ted Charter of the Registrant (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K (Registration No. 01-
12073) filed with the SEC on @cﬁtober 23, 1997)

3.1(b) - Articies of Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Charter of the Registrant
(incorporated by reference to Exhnbrt 3.1 to the Company’'s Current Report on Form 8-K
(Registration No. 01-12073) fifed with the SEC on May 28, 1298)

3.1(c) - Aricles of Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Charter of the Registrant
(incorporated by reference to Exhlblt 4.1(d) to the Company's Registration Statement
on Form 8-A12B (Regls‘tra‘tuon No. 01-12073) filed with the SEC on July 7, 2003, as
amended on August 7, 2003) :

3.2 - By-Laws of the Registrant (incf:orporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 {o the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-11 (Registration No. 33-73304)

4.4(a) -- Form of Share Certificate !for the Company’'s Common Stock, $.01 par vaiue
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-11 (Registration No. ’33 -73304))

4.1(b) -- Form of Share Certificate forjthe Company's © 1/2% Series A Cumulative Preferred
Stock, $.01 par value (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 tc the Company’s
Registration Statement on Fo:rm S-11 (Registration No. 33-73304))

4.2(a) -- Third Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Equity lhns
Partnership, L.P. (mcorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated Jun‘e 24, 1997 (Registration No. 01-12073) filed with the SEC
on July 10, 1887) ;

4.2(b) -- Amendment No. 1 to Third Ar?rjmended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership

of Equity Inns Partnership,
Company's Current Report on;
on June 24, 1998) '

L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 9.1 to the

Form 8-K (Registration No. 01-12073) filed with the SEC
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4.2(c)* -

4.3,10.1--

10.2(a) -

10.2(b)--

10.3(a)~

10.3(b)--

104 -

10.5 --

10.6(a)--

10.6(b)--

Amendment No. 2 to Third Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership
of Equity inns Partnership, L.P.

Indenture dated as of February 6, 1997 among EQI Financing Partnership |, L.P. as
Issuer, LaSalle National Bank as Trustee, and ABN AMBRO Bank N.V. as Fiscai Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q (Registration No. 01-12073) for the quarter ended March 31, 1997 and filed with
the SEC on April 30, 1997)

Form of Lease Agreement, effective as of January 1, 2001 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Registration No. 01-
12073) filed with the SEC on February 26, 2001)

Form of Consolidated Lease Agreement for the AmeriSuites hotels leased by certain
subsidiaries of Equity Inns TRS Holdings, Inc. as lessees, and Equity Inns Partnership,
L.P. as lessor, effective as of January 1, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Registration No. 01-12073) filed with the
SEC on January 25, 2002)

Equity inns, Inc. 1994 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.29(a) to the Company’'s Registration Statement on Form S-11 (Registration No. 33-
80318))

Equity Inns, Inc. Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.29(b) to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-11 (Registration
No. 33-80318))

Right of First Refusal Agreement between Wolf River Hotel, L.P. and Equity Inns
Partnership, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 33-83158))

Right of First Refusal Agreement between SAHI | L.P. and Equity Inns Partnership, L.P.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-3 (Registration No. 33-83158))

Loan Agreement, dated as of June 16, 1998, among EQi Financing Partnership Il, L.P.
and EQIAWV Financing Partnership, L.P., as Borrower Parties, and GMAC Commercial
Mortgage Corporation, as Lender (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (Registration No. 01-12073) filed with the SEC
on February 26, 2001)

Loan Affirmation and Modification Agreement dated as of December 31, 2000 by and
among EQI! Financing Partnership il, L.P., EQIMV Financing Partnership, L.P., ENN
Leasing Company |, L.L.C., Equity inns Partnership, L.P., Equity Inns, Inc., Norwest
Bank Minnesota, National Association, as trustee, and LaSalle Bank National
Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K (Registration No. 01-12073) filed with the SEC on February
26, 2001)




10.6(c) --

10.7 -

10.8 --

10.8 --

10.10(a) --

10.10(b)*--

10.11--

|
|
|
I,
1

Loan Affirmation and Modrﬂca‘tron Agreement dated as of January 9, 2002, by and
among EQI Financing Par‘mershlp I, L.P., EQIMWV Financing Partnership, L.P., EQI
Financing Partnership V, L.P., ENN ﬂ_eas rrg Company I, L.L.C., ENN Leasing Company
V, L.L.C., Equity Inns Par‘tnershm, L.P., Equity inns, Inc., [Equrty Inns Trust, Norwest
Bank anesota National A;ssomatron as frustee, and LaSalie Bank National
Association, as trustee (mcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K (Reglstratlon No. 01-12073) filed with the SEC on January
25, 2002) ‘{

Loan Agreement, dated as of Oc‘tofoer 20, 2000, between EQI Financing Partnership V,
L.P., as Borrower, and GMAC Commercial Morigage Corporation, as Lender
(mcorporated by reference to Exhrblt 10.7 to the Company’'s Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 2000 (Registration No. 01-12073) filed with the SEC
on March 23, 2001)

W
f

Loan Agreement, dated as of Nﬁovemfoer 7, 2000, between EQI Financing Partnership

i, L.P., 2s Borrower, and General Electric Caprtal Corporation, as Lender (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to rhe Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2000 (Regrstratlon No. 01-12073) fited with the SEC on March 23,
2001)

Loan Agreement, dated as of November 7, 2000, by and among EQI! Financing
Partnership IV, L.P. and EQ/WV Financing Partnership (I, L.P., as Borrowers, and
General Electric Capital Corporatlon as Lender (mcorporated by reference {o
Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2000 (Reglstra?r‘on No. 01-12073) filed with the SEC on March 23, 2001)

Amended and Restated Secured Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of June 11,

2003, by and among [Eo]urty Inns Partnership, L.P., Equity Inns/West Virginia
Partnership, L.P. and Equity | nns Partnership I, L.P. as Borrowers, Bank Cne, NA,
Credit Lyonnais New York Bramch Fleet Natronaﬂ Bank, National Barrk of Commerce,
AmSouth Bank and Union Planters Bank, National Association as Lenders, Bank One,
NA as Administrative Agent, lanc One Capital Markets, as Co-Lead Arranger/Sole
Book Manager, Credit Lyormars New York Branch as Syndication Agent and Co-Lead
Arranger and Fleet National Bank as Documentation Agent (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K (Registration No. 01-
12073) filed with the SEC on July 2, 2003)

First Amendment to Amendeeﬂ and Restated Secured Revolving Credit Agreement
dated as of January 21, 2004 by and among Equity inns Partnership, L.P., Equity Inns/
West Virginia Partnership, L.P. and Equity Inns Partnership [, L.P. as Borrower, Bank
One, NA as Administrative Agent and Lender, and the remaining Lenders that are
signatories thereto ]
|
Master Lease Termination Agreemen‘t dated as of December 20, 2001, by and among
Equity Inns, Inc., Equity Inns Har‘tnersmp, L.P., Equity Inns/West Virginia Partnership,
L.P., EQI Fmancmg Partnershlp il, L.P., EQI Fmancmg Partnership V, L.P., EQIMWYV
Fmancmg Partnership, L.P., ENN Leasmg Company, [nc., ENN Leasing Company i,
L.L.C., ENN Leasing Companyr\/ L.L.C., Prime Hospitality Corp Oradell Holding Corp.,
\Nayne Holding Corp, and Caldwell Hoidmg Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Registration No. 01-12073) filed
with the SEC on January 25, 2002)




10.12 -

10.13* --

10.14 --

10.15(a)--

10.15(b)*--

10.16 --

10.17 --

10.18 --

10.19 --

10.20 --

10.21 -

10.22 --

Form of Management Agreement between certain subsidiaries of Equity Inns TRS
Holdings, inc. and Promus Hotels, inc., effective as of January 1, 2001 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Registration
No. 01-12073) filed with the SEC on February 26, 2001)

Form of Management Agreement between certain subsidiaries of Equity inns TRS
Holdings, Inc. and Innkeepers Hospitality Management, Inc.

Form of Management Agreement between certain subsidiaries of Equity Inns TRS
Holdings, Inc. and Crossroads Hospitality Company, L.L.C., effective as of January 1,
2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K (Registration No. 01-12073) filed with the SEC on February 26, 2001)

Form of Management Agreement between certain subsidiaries of Equity Inns TRS
Holdings, Inc. and certain affiliates of Prime Hospitality Corp., effective as of January 1,
2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company's Current Report on
Form 8-K (Registration No. 01-12073) filed with the SEC on January 25, 2002

Form of Management Agreement between certain subsidiaries of Equity Inns TRS
Holdings, Inc. and certain affiliates of Prime Hospitality Corp., effective as of May 14,
2003

Form of Deed of Trust dated as of February 6, 1997 by EQI Financing Partnership 1,
L.P. in favor of LaSalle National Bank, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Company’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Registration No. 01-12073) for
the quarter ended March 31, 1997 and filed with the SEC on April 30, 1997)

Commercial Lease dated as of December 17, 1998 between 64 LTD. LLC and Equity
Inns Services, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1298 (Registration No. 01-
12073) filed with the SEC on March 23, 1999)

Change in Control and Termination Agreement between Equity inns Services, Inc.,
Equity Inns, Inc. and Phillip H. McNeill, Sr. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33
to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998
(Registration No. 01-12073) filed with the SEC on March 23, 1999)

Change in Control and Termination Agreement between Equity Inns Services, Inc.,
Equity Inns, Inc. and Howard A. Silver (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998
(Registration No. 01-12073) filed with the SEC on March 23, 1999)

Change in Control and Termination Agreement between Equity inns Services, Inc.,
Equity Inns, Inc. and Donaid H. Dempsey (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35
to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998
(Registration No. 01-12073) filed with the SEC on March 23, 1999)

Change in Control and Termination Agreement between Equity inns Services, Inc.,
Equity inns, Inc. and Phillip H. McNeill, dr. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36
to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998
(Registration No. 01-12073) filed with the SEC on March 23, 1999)

Change in Control and Termination Agreement between Equity Inns Services, Inc.,
Equity Inns, Inc. and J. Ronald Cooper (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the
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10.23 --

Company's Annuai Report on Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 2001

(Registration No. 01-12073) f

Change in Conirol and Term

Equity Inns, Inc. and Richard F

led with the SEC on March 25, 2002)

ination Agreement between Equity Inns Services, Inc
. Mitcheli (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to

the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001

(Registration No. 01-12073) f

led with the SEC on March 25, 2002)

|

Equity Inns, Inc. Executive Deﬂ‘erred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.27 to the Companys Annuai Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1999 (Reglstration No. 01-12073) filed with the SEC on March 17, 2000)

10.25 --

10.26 -- Master Lease Termination Agreemen‘t dated as of September 7, 2000, by and among
Equity Inns, Inc., Equity Inns Par‘tnershup, L.P., Equity ﬂnns/\/\iest Virginia Partnership,
L.P., EQI [Fmancmg Partnershlp I, LP., EQI Fmancmg Partnership I, L.P., EQIMVV
Fmancmg Partnership, L.P.,iEquity Inns Partnership I, L.P., E.L.P. Orﬂando L.P.,
Crossroads/Memphis Par&nershm, L.P, Crossroads/ﬂ\/ﬂemphus Financing Company,
LLC., Crossroads/ﬁ\/ﬂempms Fmancmg Company Il, L.L.C., Crossrcads Future
Com;oany, L.L.C., Crossroads Future Financing Company, L.L.C., Interstate Hotels, LLC
and Crossroads Hospltamy Company, L.L.C. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7
to the Company's Current Rep‘oﬁ on Form 8-K (Registration No. 01-12073) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commassnon on January 11, 2001)

10.27* -- Change in Control and Termmamon Agreement between Equity Inns Services, Inc.,
Equity Inns, Inc. and J. Mtcheﬂ Collins

10.28* -- Form of Management Agree'nent between certain subsidiaries of Equity Inns TRS

10.28%--

21.1%

23.1*

31.1%

31.2¢

32.9%

32.2%

Holdings, Inc. and Wright Hos

pitality Management, LLC

Form of Management Agreement between certain subsidiaries of Equity [nns TRS

Heldings, Inc. and the McKibt‘

on Hotel Group

List of subsidiaries of Equity Inns, Inc.

Consent of Pricewaterhoused
b

Certification of Phillip H. McNeill, Sr.,

oopers L.L.P.

Chief Executive Officer of Equity Inns, Inc.,

pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of ;the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and

dated March 12, 2004

Certification of J. Mitchell Coli

ns, Chief Financial Officer of Equity Inns, Inc., pursuant

to Ruie 132-14(a) of the Secfuri‘ties Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and dated

March 12, 2004

Certification of Phillip H. McNexM Sr.,

Chief Executive Officer of Equity Inns, Inc.

pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec‘hom 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 2

Certification of J. Mitchell Coi

nd] dated March 12, 2004

ins, Chief Financial Cfficer of Equity Inns, Inc. pursuant

to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as édopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002 and dated March

* Filed herewith.

12, 2004

4
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report {o be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly
authorized on the 12th day of March, 2004.

EQUITY INNS, INC.

By: [s/Phillip H. MciNeill, Sr.
Phillip H. McNeill, Sr.
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1834, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on the 12

day of March, 2004.

Signature

{s/ Phillip H. McNeill, Sr.

Phillip H. McNeill, Sr.

{s/ Howard A_ Silver
Howard A. Silver

{s/ J. Mitchell Collins
J. Mitchell Collins

{s/ Harry S. Hays
Harry S. Hays

/s/ Joseph W. Mcleary
Joseph W. McLeary

/s/ Raymond E. Schuliz

Raymond E. Schultz

Title
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
and Director

President, Chief Operating
Officer and Director

Executive Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer, Secretary,
Treasurer (Principal Financial
and Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Date

March 12, 2004

March 12, 2004

March 12, 2004

March 12, 2004

March 12, 2004

March 12, 2004




Common Stock Information

The Common Stock of Equity Inns, Inc. trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol ENN. The prices
set forth below reflect the high and low closing prices for the Company’s Comman Stock for the periods indicated
as reported by the NYSE and the cash distributions declared per share. The Company pays a quarterly dividend
on its common stock. Total dividends declared in 2003 were $0.52 per share.

Stock Price Distributions
Declared
Price Range Per Share Record
High Lo and Unit Date

Year Ended December 31, 2003:

FirstQuarter e 220139928 8003 March3l 2003

..September 30, 2003
Fourth Quarter oo 034 i 8072 0803 December 31,2003
Year Ended December 31, 2002:
First QUAarter o D834 08092 8012 March28,2002
........................................................................................................................................................... $0.13 ... . June28 2002
Quarter 3585, _

December 31, 2002

On March 3, 2004, there were 731 record holders of the Company's Common Stock, including shares held in “street name” by nominees
who are record holders, and approximately 21,000 beneficial owners.




!
Eaquity Inns, inc. Corporate Information

Corporate Address

7700 Wolf River Boulevard
Germantown, Tennesssee 38138
(801) 754-7774

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Memphis, Tennessee

General Counsel
Hunton & Williams
Richmaond, Virginia

Transfer Agent

Shareholders of record who wish to change the ownership or address
of stock: report lost, stolen or destroyed certificates; or who have questions

about their accounts should contact:
|
Sun Trust Bank, Atlanta
Stocﬂi Transfer Department
58 Edgewood Avenue
Atlanga, Georgia 30303

(800) 568-3476

li
Web Site & Internet Access

A corporate prcé;ﬁle, financial highlights, statistical data, recent press
releases, SEC filings, property locations and other information about

l,

siaulied B 940 ONILNIYD | WO uozsny 3ARI0Ge(o] NOIZSN NDIS3a

Equity Inns, Inq“. may be found on the World Wide Web at

www.equityinns;com.

Equity Inns, Inc. Officers and{;ﬁre@t@rs

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Phillip H. McNeill, Sr.
Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer of Equity Inns, Inc.

Howard A. Silver

President and Chief Operating Officer of

Equity Inns, Inc.

!
Joseph W. L\!}ﬂcﬂ.eavylvz
Director of Inveéstment Banking of
Wunderlich Seéurities, Inc.

Raymond E.| Schulez!l,2
Former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
Promus Hotel porporation

I

]
Harry S. (Sandy) Hanyslv2
Former President and Chief Executive Officer of
Allen & O’Haratlnc.

1Compensatio{jn Committee
2pudit Commi:ftee
!

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Phillip H. McNeill, Sr.
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Howard A. Silver
President and Chief Operating Officer

J. Mitchell Collins
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Secretary and Treasurer

Phillip H. MeNelll, Jr.
Senior Executive Vice President of Development

Richard F. Mitchell
Senior Vice President, Asset Management

J. Ronald Cooper
Vice President, Controller, Assistant Secretary
and Assistant Treasurer
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EQUITY INNS, INC. HOTEL PORTFOLIQ

State City 7‘ Hote! Telephone State City Hetel frlephone }
AL } Hampton Inn NE it Residence Inn }
AL AmeriSuites NJ ERERRN Residence Inn SRR }
AL Hampton Inn NJ Residence Inn BRI
j AR Hampton Inn NJ } Residence Inn R
| Az AmeriSuites NM b l AmeriSuites T
j AZ Homewood Suites NV D i AmeriSuites
| AZ \ Hampton Inn NY i Hampton Inn
] A 1 Residence Inn OH T AmeriSuites
j CO | Hampton inn OH Fae | AmeriSuites z
]‘ Cca Residence Inn OH ; | Homewood Suites E13.772 8888
) ] Hampton Inn OH Ciperini Hampton Inn - Yo
" CT Homewood Suites OH AmeriSuites Tt dles
, CT ] Hampton Inn OH : Hampton Inn :
fCT Hampton Inn 0K Residence Inn BT
FL Hampton Inn OR Pt Residence Inn LS ERnA
FL Comfort Inn PA ot Hampton Inn e
] FL AmeriSuites PA St Hampton Inn ST
! FL AmeriSuites SC Chihear et { Hampton Inn PR
FL Homewood Suites SC R RIS Holiday inn s EEA G
FL Hampton Inn SC I Hampton Inn AENPE S
| FL AmeriSuites TN { Hampton Inn
‘ GA : Hampton Inn TN Hampton Inn TSR N
GA Al Homewood Suites TN Homewood Suites g [
GA Cotumbus Hampton Inn N ) Hampton Inn (‘
D Haise Residence Inn TN Hampton Inn i
IL Homewood Suites N AmeriSuites
IL Hampton Inn N Hampton Inn
L Hampton inn N AmeriSuites
IN AmeriSuites TN Hampton Inn
IN Hampton Inn 1B | Hampton Inn
KS AmeriSuites X Hampton Inn
KS Hampton Inn TX Hampton Inn
KY Hampton Inn X Comfort Inn
LA AmeriSuites TX Hampton inn
MD Hampton Inn TX Courtyard
MD AmeriSuites T Hampton Inn ‘
M Hampton Inn X Homewood Suites [
Ml Hampton Inn VA Hampton Inn |
MI Hampton Inn VA AmeriSuites ;
MN Residence Inn VT Residence Inn
MN AmeriSuites 2 Comfort Inn
MO Hampton Inn WA Homewood Suites (
MO Hampton Inn WV Hampton Inn
NC Hampton inn wv Holiday Inn
NC Hampton Inn wv B Hampton Inn
NC Hampton Inn wy (b b Holiday Inn
NC Yinston-Salem Holiday Inn

EQUITY BINS, 18,

7700 Wolft River Boulevard
Ganmentowr, Tennesse 38138
Tel: 901-754-7774
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